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Directors’ Report

The directors present theur report and audited financial statements of SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd (the "Company”) for the
year ended 31 December 2011

Principal activities
The pnnaipal actmvity of the Company was that of a general leasing company and it 1s not anticipated that this will change
for the foreseeable future

Business review

The Company’s operating Partnerships ceased to be going concerns dunng the year and wound up trade The
Company's loans to these Partnerships were fully recovered on close-aut of the Parinerships’ underlying finance
teases The cash flow generated was used to repay intercompany borrowings

Further details are provided in notes 6, 7 and 8

The key performance Indicator used by management in assessing the performance of the Company 1s the monitonng of
the net return on the specific underlying transactions which the Company has entered into Monthly management
accounts are prepared and reviewed by the management of the Standard Chartered Bank business in which this Company
resides

Financial instruments
Financial instruments for the period comprised loans and inter-group balances

Proposed dividend
The directors do not recommend the payment of a dimdend (2010 nil)

Directors holding office during the period
Dawvid Richards

Avenina Snow

Barbara McAll

Sandeep Jain (alternate director to Averina Snow}
Terry Skippen (alternate director to Barbara McAll)

Qualifying third party indemnities
There are no qualifying third party indemnities 1n force at the time of this report

Employees
The Company has no employees

Risk management

The nsk management objectives of the Company are set out in note 11
Political and charitable contributions h

The Company made ne pelitcal or chantable contnbutions during the period (2010 nil)

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this directors’ report confirm that, so far as they are each aware,
there 18 no relevant audit information of which the company’s audiors are unaware, andd each director has taken all the
steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the company’s auditors are aware of that information

Auditors
Pursuant to section 487 of the Companies Act 2008, the auditor wili be deemed to be reappointed and KPMG Audit Plc
will therefore continue 1n office

By order of the board

Terry Skippen 1 Basinghall Avenue
(alternate director to Barbara McAll) London
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd EC2V 5DD

Reg No 6787116
Date 27 September 2012
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Statement. of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the Directors’
Report and Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the Directors’ Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financtal statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
true and fair view of the state of affars of the company and of the profit or loss of the company for that penod 1n
preparing these financial statements, the directors are required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
« state whether they have been prepared m accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropriate to presume that the company
will continue In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial posiien of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general
responsibility for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the company and to
prevent and detect fraud and other iregulanties
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of SC Transport Leasing
1 Ltd

We have audited the financial statements of SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd for the year ended 31 December 2011 set out
on pages 5to 15 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the EU

This report I1s made solely to the Company's members, as a body, In accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006 Qur audt work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditors' report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company's members, as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors' Responsibitties Statement set out on page 3, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view QOur responsibility 1s
to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements In accordance with applicable law and International
Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's
(APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the financial statements
A descnption of the scope of an audit of financial statements 1s provided on the APB's web-site at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm

Opinion on financial statements
In our optnion the financial statements

s give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affars as at 31 December 2011 and of its loss for the year
then ended,

e have been properly prepared in accordance with [FRSs as adopted by the EU, and

e have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compantes Act 2006

Opinion on other matter prescrtbed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opimon the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared 1s consistent with the financial statements

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the follomng matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to
you If, In our opinion

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audtt have not been received from
branches not visited by us, or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns, or

= gertain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made, or

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit

S AMEN. HORR |

Samer Hijazi (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

15 Canada Square

E14 5GL

Date 27 September 2012




Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$000 $000
Financial income 4 2,213 18,399
Financial expenses 4 (1,266) (76,421)
Profit/ {loss} before tax 947 (58,022)
Taxation 5 (8,259) 83,790
(Loss) ! Profit for the year (7,312} 25,768
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011
2011 2010
$000 $000
{Loss) / Profit for the year (7,312) 25,768
Other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive (loss) / ncome for the year {7,312} 25,768
The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of the financial statements
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 5
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$000 $000
Current assets
Loan to Partnerships 8 - 2,536
Amounts due from group undertakings 6 3,283 1,084
Interest receivable 6 1,907 -
Corporation tax receivable 48,377 78,730
53,567 82,350
Non-current assets
Loan to Partnerships 8 - 9,316
Deferred tax asset 5 - 84,626
- 93,042
Total assets 53,567 176,292
Current liabilities
Amounts owed to group undertakings 7 37,586 105,956
Interest payable 7 83 289
37,669 106,245
Non-current habihities
Amounts owed tc group undertakings 7 - 46,837
- 46,837
Total habilities 37,669 153,082
Net assets 15,898 23,210
Equity
Share capital - -
Retained earrungs/ (accumulated losses) 15,898 23,210
Total equity 15,898 23,210

The noies on pages 9 to 15 form part of the finanaial statements

These financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 27 September 2012 and were signed on its
behalf by

Y o N

David Richards

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
Reg No 6787116
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Retained Total equity

earnings
$000 $000
Balance at 1 January 2010 (2,558) (2,558)
Profit for the year 25,768 25,768
Total other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income for the penod 25,768 25,768
Balance at 1 January 2011 23,210 23,210
Profit/ (loss) for the year (7,312) (3,547)
Total other comprehensive iIncome - -
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) far the year (7.312) (3,547)
Balance at 31 December 2011 15,898 19,663

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of the finanoial statements
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
$000 $000

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit/ (loss) before tax 947 (58,022)
Carrying amount adjusiment to Partnershtp investments - 73,957
Interest iIncome (2,187) (69)
Interest expense 1,266 2,464
Net cash (used In)/ generated from operating activities 26 18,330

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment in Partnerships - - {124,550)
Capital distnbutions recerved from Partnerships - 6,128
Loan repayments from Partnerships 11,852 1,361
Group relief receipts 106,720 21,063
Interest recerved from group undertaking 74 127
Loans made to group undertakings (6) (51,882)
Repayments of loans made to group undertakings - 50,798
Net cash generated from/ {used in) iInvesting activities 118,640 (96,955)

Cash flows from financing activities
Loans received from group undertakings 2,062 87,013
Interest paid to group undertaking (1,2686) 17,362
Repayments of loans from group undertakings (119,462) (26,726}
Net cash (used in)/ generated from financing activities (118,666) 77,649
Net decrease 1n cash and cash equivalents - (9786)
Cash and cash equivalents brought forward - 976

Cash and cash equivatents carried forward

The notes on pages 9 to 15 form part of the financial statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

Principal accounting policies
The Company's financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs")

Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention The accounting policies set
out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in the financial
statements The Company has prepared its financial statements on a going concern basis and in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs") as endorsed by the European Union (‘EU’)

At 31 December 2011, the Company had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been 1ssused by the
1ASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all periods presented in these financial statements

IFRSs comprise accounting standards i1ssued by the IASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretations
1ssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC') and its predecessor body

Use of estimates and judgements

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRSs reguires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptiens that affect the apphcation of accounting polictes and the reported amounts of assets,
habilities, income and expenses Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised In the period In which the estmate 1s revised and in any future periods affected

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements

The following pronouncements relevant and applicable to the Company were 1ssued as at 31 December 2011 but
have effective dates for penods beginning after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and certain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Umion i1s not permitted The full impact of these
IFRSs 'and IFRIC Interpretatons 1s currently being assessed by the Company, none of these pronocuncements
are expected to result in any matenal adjustments to the financial statements

Mandatory effective
date for

Pronouncement Description of impact the Company
Amendment to IFRS This amendment introduces additional disclosures when an 1 January 2012
7 Financral asset is transferred but 1s not derecognised It also requires

Instruments disclosures of assets that are derecognised but where the

Presentation entity continues to have a continuing exposure to the asset

after the sale

IFRS 13 Far Value
Measurement

Consolidates the guidance on how to measure far value 1 January 2012
into one comprehensive standard It introduces the use of

an exit price, as well as extensive disclosure requirements,

partcularly the inclusion of non-financial instruments into the

far value hierarchy This amendment had not been

endorsed by the EU at 31 December 2011

[

{FRS 9 — Financial
instruments (Classification
and Measurement)

IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of |AS 39 in respect of the
classificaton and measurement of financial assets and
financial habiiies  The standard requires all financial assets
to be classified as fair value or amortised cost Amortised
cost classification 15 only permitted where the asset 1s held
within a business model whose objective i1s to hold assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows and where these
contractual cash flows are solely payment of pnncipal and
interest Gams or losses on assets measured at far value
are recognised In the iIncome statement unless the asset is
an equity Investment and the Group has elected to present
such gains or losses in other comprehensive income

1 January 2015

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
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Notes to the financial statements (continueo)
1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Recently i1ssued accounting pronouncements {confinued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the European Union the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will apply in the
2012 financial statements those pronouncements marked 1n the table above

Functional Currency

The financiai statements are presented In United States Dollars (“$"), which is the Company's functional and
presentatton currency Foreign cumrency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transachons and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
habilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financial information presented in
US Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpcses of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months maturity from the date of acquisition, inciuding cash and balances at central banks (unless restricted),
treasury bils and other eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, short-term government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration received)
net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of fransaction costs and the redemption value I1s recognised In the income statement over the
penod of the borrowings using the effective nterest method

Share capital
Incremental costs dirsctly attnbutable to the 1ssue of new shares or options or to the acquisition of a business are
shown In equity as a deducticon, net of tax, from the proceeds

Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period 1n which they are declared

Interest income and expense

Interest Income and expense are recognised In the iIncome statement using the effective interest method The
effective interest method 1s @ method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hability
and of allocating the interest Income or interest expense over the relevant period The effective interest rate 1s
the rate that discounts estmated future cash payments or recelpts through the expected Iife of the financial
instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
habilty When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates cash flows considenng all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses The calculation includes all fees and ponts paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 10
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1 Principal accounting policies {continued)

Taxation
Income tax on profit or loss for the period compnses current and deferred tax Tax is recognised in the iIncome
statement except to the extent thal it relates to tems recogmsed directly In equity, in which case it 1s recogrused
N equity

Current tax 1s the expected tax payable/recoverable on the taxable result for the pernod, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustments payable/recoverable in respect of
previous years

Deferred taxation 1s accounted for on an undiscounted basis at expected tax rates on all tming differences which
occur where items are tax-effected in a period different from that in which they are recognised n the financial
statements A deferred tax asset 1s recogmised only to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profits wall
be available against which the asset can be utilised

Financial instruments

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categones financial assets held at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and recewables, held-to-matunity investments, and avallable-for-sale financial
assets Management determines the classification of its financial assets at inival recogrition -~

Available-for-sale investments are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of tme, which may be sold in
response to needs for hquidity or changes In interest rates, exchange rates or equity pnces

Purchases and sales of financial assets are initally recogrised on trade-date (the date on which the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset) Financial assets are ntially recogrised at far value plus directly
attributable transaction costs for all financial assets not carned at fair value through profit or loss Financial
assets are derecogrised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or where
the Company has transferred substantially all risks and rewards or ownership

Gains and losses ansing from changes in the farr value of available-for-sale financial assets other than foreign
exchange gains and losses from monetary items are recogrised directly in equity, until the financial asset 1s
derecognised or impaired at which ime the cumulative gan or loss previously recognised in equity 1s recognised
in profit or loss However, interest calculated using the effective 1nterest method 1s recognised in the income
statement Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in the mcome statement when the
entity’s nght to receive payment 1s established

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices If the market for a
financial asset 1s not active {(and for unlisted secunties), the Company establishes far value by using valuation
techniques These include the use of recent arms length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing models and other valuation techniqgues commonly used by market partcipants

Derivative Finanaial Instruments Derivatives are recorded on the balance sheet at farr value with changes 1n the
faur value being taken to the Income Statement

2 Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor's remuneration of $11,000 (2010 $11,000) for the period ended 31 December 2011 was borne by
Standard Chartered Bank

3 Directors’ emoluments

None of the directors received any fees or emoluments for services as directors of the Company dunng the year
(2010 i)

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 11
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

4 Financial income and expense
2011 2010
$000 $000
Fee income ' - 18,330
Proceeds from sale of ships 26 -
Interest Income 2,187 69
Financial income 2,213 18,399
Carrying amount adjustment to Partnershup investments - 73,957
Interest expense 1,266 2,464
Financial expenses 1,266 76,421
5 Taxation
Analysis of taxation charge/ (credit) in the year
2011 2010
$000 $000
Current tax
Current tax on income/ (loss) for the year (80,156) (86,824)
Adjustments in respect of pnor penods 3,789 395
Deferred tax
Ongination/ reversal of temporary differences 84,626 2,639
Tax on profits on ordinary activities 8,259 (83,790)
Explanation of the relattonship between tax credit and accounting profit
Profit/ (loss) on ordinary activiies before taxation 947 (58,022)
Tax at 26 5% (2010 28%} 251 (16,246)
Effects of
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of pnor pernods 3,789 395
Attnibution of Partnership losses (80,407) (21,286)
Non-deductible adjustment to Partnership investment - 20,708
Adjustment to restate deferred tax - 2,639
Movement to deferred tax asset on termination of leasing 84.626 -
arrangement
Tax on profits on ordinary activities 8,259 (83,790)
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 12
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

5 Taxation (continued)
Deferred tax asset:

The followang are the major deferred tax assets recognised by the Company

2011 2010

$000 $000

Future tax deductions from Partnership investments - 84,626

Deferred tax asset - 84,626
The movement In deferred tax asset comprises

At 31 December 84,626 -

Transfer to deferred tax asset - 87,265

Adjustment to restate deferred tax - (2,639}

Movement to deferred tax asset on termination of leasing arrangement {84,626) -

At 31 December - 84,626

On 22 June 2010, the UK Government announced its intention to reduce the main rate of corporation tax rate from
28 per cent to 27 per cent The reduction became substantively enacted in July 2010 and was effective from 1
April 2011 A further 1 per cent reduction was substantively enacted on 29 March 2011 following the 2011 UK
Budget Statement, decreasing the 2011-12 rate to 26 per cent

Finance Act 2011 was substantively enacted on 5§ July 2011 reducing the 2012-13 mamn rate of corporation tax
from 26 per cent to 25 per cent Following the 2012 UK Budget Statement a further reduction of 1 per cent was
subsiantively enacted on 29 March 2012 reducing the rate to 24 per cent from 1 Apnt 2012 A proposal to reduce
the rate to 23 per cent from 1 Apnl 2013 and to 22 per cent from 1 Apnl 2014 was included 1n the same budget
statement The further rate reductions are not substantively enacted at the balance sheet date and are not
considered matenal

6 Amounts owing from group undertakings

The Company has a deposit of $1 09m with Standard Chartered Bank at & month LIBOR and a $2 19m fixed rate
loan ta SC Transport Leasing 2 Limited Both are expected to be repaid dunng the 2012 year

2011 2010
$000 $000
Current amounts owing from group undertakings 3,283 1,084
Amounts owing from group undertakings 3 283 1,084
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 3
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

7 Amounts owed to group undertakings

The Company has a $17 55m fixed rate loan from SC Transport Leasing 2 Limited and other non-interest beanng
amounts owed to group undertakings of $19 83m These borrowings are expecied to be repaid dunng the 2012

year
2011 2010
$000 $000
Amounts owed to group undertakings 37,379 105,749
Interest payable 83 289
Net funds received cn trust for Partnerships 207 207
Current amounts owed to group undertakings 37,669 106,245
Amounts owed to group undertakings - 46,837
Non-current amounts owed to group undertaklngs - 46,837
Amounts owed to group undertaklggs 37,669 153,082
8 Investments
The Company’s loans to Partnerships were fully repaid during the year on termination of the Partnerships’
underlying finance leases
2011 2010
$000 $000
Operung balance at 1 January - 56,013
Capital contnbutions - 124,549
Returns of capital - (105,213)
Adjustments to carrying amount - (73,957}
Transfers to deferred tax assets - (1,392)
Investment in Partnerships at 31 December - -
Opening balance at 1 January 11,852 -
Loans to Partnerships - 99,086
Repayments of loan principal (11,852) (1,361)
Transfers to deferred tax assets - (85.873)
Loans to Partnerships at 31 December - 11,852
Repayable within one year - 2,536
- 9,316

Repayable in one year or greater

At 31 December 2011 the Partnerships held by the Company were

The BW Leasing Partnership 1 LP
The BW Leasing Partnership 2 LP
The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP
The BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP
The BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP
The SC Transport Leastng Partnership 1
The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 2
The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 3
The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 4

Country of registration
or incorporation

England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England
England

% Ownership

2011

99 9%
99 9%
98 9%
99 9%
09 9%
99 9%
99 9%
99 9%
99 9%

2010

99 9%
99 9%
89 9%
99 9%
99 9%
99 9%
99 9%
99 9%
99 9%

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
Directors’ Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

9

10

11

12

Called up Share capital
Following amendment to corporate law in the UK through the Companies Act 2006, the Company amended its
Articles of Association to remove the provision for authonsed share capital

Share capital allotted
Called up and fuily paid 1 1
1 share of £1 ===== =====

Related party transactions

The ardinary share capital of the Company is held by SC Transport Leasing 2 Limited
The Company had amounts due from group undertakings as detalled in note 6

The Company had amounts cwing to group undertakings as detalled in note 7

The Company received the loan principal from its debt snvestment in Partnerships as detailed in note 8

Risk management

a) Credit nsk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Company by
falling to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year compnsed inter group balances and loans to
ship leasing Partnerships The Standard Chartered Group has policies and procedures in place to manage risk so
the credit nsk from amounts owed by group undertakings 1s not significant Credit nisk 1s further mitigated by
indemmification guarantees against certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences associated
with the Company’s activiies

b) Liquidity nsk
Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due Liquidity
risk 1s mitigated as funding decisions are within the control of the Partners

c) Foreign currency risk
Foreign currency nsk 1s the nsk of a loss from assets or habilties denoted in a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Company are denominated in United States dollars ("LUSD")

d) Market nsk

Market nsk is the exposure created by potential changes in market prices and rates The Company Is not exposed
to any significant market nsk The Cempany has no significant exposures as the majonty of its transactions and
balances are confined within the group

Ultimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Company 1s a member

The Company 15 a wholly owned subsidiary undertaking of SC Transport Leasing 2 Limited, incorporated in
England and Wales with imited habiity The ultmate holding company 1s Standard Chartered PLC, a company
registered i England and Wales The largest group in which the results of the Company are consolidated is that
headed by Standard Chartered PLC, and the smallest group 1s that headed by Standard Chartered Bank The
consalidated financial statements of this Company are available to the public and may be obtained from the
Company Secretary at 1 Basinghall Avenue, London EC2V 5DD

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
Drrectors’ Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011
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General Partner’s Report

The General Partrer, SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, of The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 3 (the "Partnership”) submits
the following report, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner’s responsibilities

The Limited Partnership Agreement of 25 March 2009 requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for
each financial penod 1n accordance with the accounting policies set out In the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these financial statements, the General Pariner is required to

» select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements, and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless It is Inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continue n business (As explained 1n note 1 of the financial statements, the directors do not believe that it 1s
appropnate to prepare these financial statements on a going concem basis)

The General Partner is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reascnable accuracy at any
fime the financial position of the Partnership and to enable it to ensure the financial statements comply with the Limited
Parinership Agreement The General Partner 1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulantes

Principal activities
Commentary on the business of the Partnership dunng the year 1s contained in the Business review The results for the
year are set out 1n the Income Statement on page 6

Business review
Dunng the previous year, the directors took the decision to cease trading As the directors do not intend to acquire a
replacement trade, they have not prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis The effect of this is
explained in note 1

Going concern
Having made appropnate enquines, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore no longer
adopt the going concern basis In prepanng the financial statements

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this General Partner's Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit iInformation of which the Partnership’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken
all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Partnership’s auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The General Partner has appomnted KPMG Audtt Plc as auditors of the partnership KPMG Audit Ple have indicated therr
willingness to continue in office

Hoesnra # Steeev

Averina Snow 1 Basinghall Avenue
Director London
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd EC2V §DD
LP013442

Date 27 Sepiember 2012
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the General
Partner’s Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the General Partner's Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law reguires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with {FRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable taw

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and farr view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod In prepanng
these financial statements, the directors are required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent,
- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregulanties
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Independent auditor's report to the members of SC Transport Leasing
Partnership 3

We have audited the financial statements of SC Transport Leasing Partnership 3 {the “Partnership”) for the year ended 31
December 2011set out on pages 6 to 13 The financial reporting framework that has been apphied in ther preparation I1s
applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs’) as endorsed by the European Union (“EU")

These financial statements have not been prepared on a going concem basis for the reason set out In note 1

This report 1s made solely to the partners, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the pariners those matters we have been engaged to state to them in this report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the partners, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explained more fully In the Statement of Directors” Responsibilihes set out on page 4, the partners are responsibte for
the preparation of the accounts In accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 25 March 2009 Our responsibihty
1s to audit, and express an opinion on, the accounts in accerdance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18
October 2010 and having regard to Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Prachces Board's {APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the accounts

A descnption of the scope of an audit of accounts 1s provided on the APB’s website at

Opinion on accounts

In our opinion

« the financial statements give a true and farr vew of the state of the parinership's affars as at 31 December 2011 and of
its loss for the year then ended,

» the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

- have been prepared in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 25 March 2009,

Emphasis of matter — going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which is not modified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made 1n note 1 to the financial statements concerming the Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern
The Partnership has ceased the operatons in 2010 and there were no trading activities dunng 2011 These conditions,
along with the other matters explaned in note 1 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern The financial statements have
not been prepared on a going concem basis and instead the financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery
basis

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in relation to the following matters where, under the terms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you if, In our opinion

« the partners’ report* 1s not consistent with the accounts,

» the partnership has not kept proper accounting records,

+ we have not recesved all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

« iInformation specified by the Partnership Agreement regarding partners' remuneration and other transachons 1s not
disclosed

Sapmen. Y uGhy

Samer Hijazi (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

Date 27 September 2012
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Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 20190
$'000 $'000
Financial income 3 - 616
Financial expenses 3 - (11,728)
Loss for the year - (11,112)
The notes on pages 10 to 13 form part of the Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011
2011 2010
$'000 $°000
Loss for the year - {11,112}
Other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (11,112)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$'000 $'000

Current assets
Amounts owed from group undertakings 52 52
Total assets 52 52

Equity

Partners’ capital account 52 52
52 52

Total equity

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements

These financial statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner's Board of Directors on 27 September

2012 and were signed on therr behalf by

Yd M/~

David Richards

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
LP013442
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2010 10,438 (1.966) 8,472
Loss for the year - (11,112) (11,112)
Total other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (11,112) (11,112}
Partnership capital contributed 2,692 - 2,692
Distnbutions of partnership capital - - -
Total contnbutions by and distrnbutions to Partners 2,692 - 2,692
Balance at 1 January 2011 13,130 (13,078) 52
Loss for the year - - -
Total other comprehensive Income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - -
Partnership caprtal contnbuted - - -
Distnibutions of partnership capital - - -
Total contnbutions by and distnbutions ic Partners - - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 13,130 {13,078) 52
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The SC Transport Leasing Partnershep 3 8
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Cash Flow Statement 2011 2010
for the year ended 31 December 2011 $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax - (11,112)
Change in debtors/ creditors - 8,456
Deferred income - {616)
Prepaid expenses - 580
Net cash used In operating activities - (2,692)
Cash flows from financing activities

Capital contributions from partners N 2,692
Net cash generated from financing activities - 2,692
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

Principal accounting policies
The Partnership’s financial statements have been prepared and approved by the General Partner in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (*adopted IFRSs")

Basis of preparafion
The financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis, The accounting policies set out below
have, urless otherwise stated, been appled consistently to all years presented in the financial statements

Following cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnership is not likely to enter into any
further trade in the future The Partnership will therefore no longer adopt the going concern basis of accounting
and instead the financal statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis in the current year, In
accordance with International Financial Reporing Standards ('IFRSs’) as endorsed by the European Union
(EW)

At 31 December 2011, the Partnership had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been 1ssued by the
IASE and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all years presented in these financial statements

IFRSs compnse accounting standards 1ssued by the IASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretations
1ssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretattons Committee ('IFRIC') and s predecessor body

Reporting entity
SC Transport Leasing Partnership 3 1s a Partnership established in the United Kingdom The address of the
Parinership's pnncipal place of business 1s 1 Basinghall Avenue, London EC2V 5DD

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

The following pronouncements relevant and applicable te the Partnership were i1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods beginning after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and certain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Union 1s not permitted The full impact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations 1s currently being assessed by the Partners, none of these pronouncements are
expected to result iIn any maternial adjustments to the financial statements

Mandatory effective
date for
Pronouncement - Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to |1AS This amendment provides a practical approach for 1 January 2012
12 — Deferred tax measuring deferred tax assets when 1t would be
Recovery of difficult and subjectve to determine the expected
underlying assets' * manner of recovery
Amendment to IFRS 7 — Requires additonal disclosures when an asset 1s 1 January 2012
Financial instruments transferred but 1s not derecogrised it also requires
disclosure’ 2 disclosures of assets that are derecognised but where

the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to
the asset after the sale

IFRS 9 — Fimancial IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of IAS 39 in respect 1 January 2016

Instruments’ 2 of the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial labitbes The standard requires
all financial assets to be classified as farr value or
amortised cost Amortised cost classification 1s only
permitted where the asset 1s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and where these
contractual cash flows are solely payment of pnncipal
and interest, Gamns or losses on assets measured at
far value are recognised :n the income statement
unless the asset 1s an equity investment and the Group
has elected to present such gains or losses in other
comprehensive iIncome
Financial habilites are required to be measured at fair
value or amortised cost similar to IAS 39 requirements
except that the change n fair value relating to own
credit 1s reported within other comprehensive income
and not the income statement
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Recently issued accounting pronouncements (continued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the European Union the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will apply in the
2012 financial statements those pronouncements marked n the table above

Functional Currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars {“$"), which 1s the Partnership’s functional and
presentation currency Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
lrabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the Income statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financial information presented In
US Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments is
recognised as a recelvable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable
1s recognised as unearned finance Income Lease income 1s then recognised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of retum ignonng tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse balances with less than three
months matunty from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances at central banks (unless restricted),
treasury bills and other eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, short-term government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, being their 1ssue proceeds (fair value of consideration received)
net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value 1s recognised in the iIncome statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Interest iIncome and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised In the income statement using the effective interest method The
effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hability
and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant period The effective interest rate 1s
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter penod to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
llabihty When calculating the effective interest rate, the Partnership estmates cash flows considening all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts
distnbutions are recognised when uncondittonally receivable from the underlying partnerships
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
2 Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor's remuneration of $6,000 (2010 $6,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011 was borne by
Standard Chartered Bank

3 Financial income and expense
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
QOperating lease iIncome - 616
Financial income - 616
Indemnity fee amortisation - (11,148)
QOperating lease expense - (580)
Financial expenses - {11,728)
4 Indemnity fees
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Capitalised indemnity fees opening wntten-down value - 11,188
Less current year amortisation - (11,148)
Less discount on settlement of accrued fees payable - (40)
Capitalised indemnity fees at year end - -
Accrued fees payable opening balance - (2,732)
Add fees settled in current year - 2,732

Accrued fees payable at year end - -

5 Related party transactions

None of the directors or officers of the Partners received any fees or emoluments for services as directors or
officers of the Partner dunng the year (2010 nil)

The partnership did not receive any capital contributions from the partners during the year (2010 $2,691,938)

The partnership had amounts due from SC Transpart Leasing 1 Ltd of $52,000 {2010 $52,000) These are non-
interest bearing current accounts repayable on demand

The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 3 12
General Partner's Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011




Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6

Risk management

a) Creditnsk

Credit nsk is the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Partnership by
faling to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year compnised inter group balances The Standard
Chartered Group has policies and procedures in ptace to manage nisk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by
group undertakings 1s not significant Credit nsk i1s further mitigated by an indemnification guarantee agatnst
certain unintended and adverse tax or operational conseguences associated with the Partnership’s activities

b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obhigations as they fall due
Liquidity risk 1s mitigated as funding decisions are withun the control of the Partners

c) Foreign currency nsk
Foreign currency nsk 1s the nsk of a loss from assets or labilites denoted in a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Partnership are denominated in United States dollars (*USD")

d) Marketrisk

Market nsk 1s the exposure created by potential changes in market prices and rates The Partnership 1s not
exposed to any significant market nsk The Partnership has no significant exposures as its transactions and
balances are confined within the group

Ulumate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership 1s a member

The Partnership was formed in the UK under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907 on 25 March 2009 The largest group
in which the results of the Partnership are consolidated 1s that headed by Standard Chartered PLC, and the smallest
group +s that headed by Standard Chartered Bank The consolidated financial statements of these companies are
available to the public and may be obtained from the Company Secretary at 1 Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V
50D
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General Partner’s Report

The General Partner, SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, of The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 1 (the “Partnership™) submits
the following report, 1n respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner's responsibilities

The Limited Partnership Agreement of 25 March 2009 requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for
each financial penod In accordance with the accounting policies set out in the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these finanaial statements, the General Partner is required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained m the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continue in business (As explaned 1n note 1 of the financial statements, the directors do not believe that it 1s
appropnate to prepare these financial statements on a going concem basis)

The General Partner 1s responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
tme the financial postion of the Partnership and to enable 1t to ensure the financial statements comply with the Limited
Parnership Agreement The General Partner is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parnership and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregutanties

Principal activities
Commentary on the business of the Partnership dunng the year 1s contained in the Business review The results for the
year are set out in the Income Statement on page 6

Business review
Dunng the previous year, the directors took the decision to cease trading As the directors do not intend to acquire a
replacement trade, they have not prepared the financial statements on a going concern basis The effect of this 1s
explained In note 1

Going concern
Having made appropriate enqumes, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore no longer
adopt the going concern basis In prepanng the financial statements

Disclosure of Information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this General Partner's Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Partnership's auditors are unaware, and each director has taken
all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit infformation and to
establish that the Partnership's auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The General Partner has appomnted KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the partnership KPMG Audit Plc have indicated ther
willingness to continue in office

) VA

Averina Snow 1 Basinghall Avenue
Director London
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd EC2V 5DD
LP013441

Date 27 September 2012
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the General
Partner’s Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for preparing the General Partner's Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and far view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period In prepanng
these financial statements, the directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
« make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
» state whether they have been prepared in accordance wath IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company wall
continue in business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasanable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect
fraud and other uregularties
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Independent auditor's report to the members of SC Transport Leasing
Partnership 1

We have audited the financial statements of SC Transport Leasing Partnership 1 (the “Partnership”) for the year ended 31
December 2014set out on pages 6 to 13 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in therr preparation 1s
applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs") as endorsed by the European Union ("EU”)

These financial statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis for the reason set out i nete 1

This repart 1s made solely to the partners, as a body, In accordance with the terms of our engagement Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the partners those matters we have been engaged to state to them in this report
and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the partners, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors™ Responsibilities set out on page 4, the partners are responsible for
the preparation of the accounts in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 25 March 2009 Qur responsibility
15 to audit, and express an opinion on, the accounts in accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18
October 2010 and having regard to Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the accounts

A descniption of the scope of an audit of accounts 1s provided on the APB's website at

Opinion on accounts

In our opimion

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the partnership's affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of
its loss for the year then ended,

« the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

- have been prepared In accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 25 March 2009

Emphasis of matter — going concern

In forming our opinion on the financial statements, which 1s not madified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made n note 1 to the financial statements concerning the Parinership’s ability to continue as a going concern
The Partnership has ceased the operations 0 2010 and there were no trading activities dunng 2011 These conditions,
along with the other matters explained in note 1 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern The financial statements have
not been prepared on a going concermn basis and instead the financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery
basis

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in relation to the following matters where, under the terms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you If, in our opinicn

« the partners' report* i1s nat consistent with the accounts,

« the partnership has not kept proper accounting records,

« we have not received all the infformation and explanations we require for our audit, or

« information specified by the Partnership Agreement regarding partners’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not
disclosed

TDAMEN. HIONR

Samer Hijaz1 (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behaif of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

Date 27 September 2012
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Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Financial income 3 - 615
Financial expenses 3 - (20,684)
Loss for the year - (20,069)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011
201 2010
$'000 $000
Loss for the year - (20,069)
Other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive toss for the year - (20,069)
The notes on pages 10to13 fprm part of the Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011 ‘

| Current assets

Note 31 December 2011 31 December 2010

$'000 $'000

Amounts owed from group undertakings 52 52

Total assets 52 52
Equity

Partners’ capital account 52 52

52 52

Total equity

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements

These financial statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner’s Board of Directors on 27 September

2012 and were signad on therr behalf by

David Richards

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
LPO13441
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2010 18,824 (3,558) 15,266
Loss for the year - (20,069) (20,069)
Total other comprehensive Income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (20,069} {20,069)
Partnership capital contributed 4,855 - 4,855
Distnbutions of partnership capital - - -
Total contnbutions by and distnbutions to Partners 4,855 - 4 855
Balance at 31 December 2010 23,679 {23,627) 52
Loss for the year - - -
Total other comprehensive iIncome - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - -
Partnership capital contributed - - -
Distnbutions of partnership capital - - -
Total contnbutions by and distributions to Partners - - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 23,679 (23,627) 52
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 1 8
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Cash Flow Statement 2011 2010
for the year ended 31 December 2011 $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax - (20,069)
Change In debtors/ creditors - 15,249
Deferred income - {615}
Prepaid expenses - 580
Net cash used I1n operating activities - {4,855)
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital contnbutions from partners - 4,855
Net cash generated from financing activities - 4,855
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
g
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

Principal accounting policies
The Partnership’s financial statements have been prepared and approved by the General Partner in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs")

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis, The accounting policies set out below
have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years presented in the financial statements

Following cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnership 1s not likely to enter into any
further trade in the future The Partnership wil therefore no longer adopt the going concern basis of accounting
and instead the financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis in the current year, In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRSs’) as endorsed by the European Union
(‘EU)

At 31 December 2011, the Partnership had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been issued by the
IASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EUU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all years presented in these financial statements

IFRSs compnse accounting standards issued by the 1ASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretations
1ssued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ('IFRIC’) and its predecessor body

Reporting entity
SC Transport Leasing Partnership 1 1s a Partnership established in the United Kingdom The address of the
Partnership’s pnncipal place of business 1s 1 Basinghall Avenue, London EC2V 5DD

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

The following prencuncements relevant and applicable to the Partnership were I1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods begnning after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and certain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Union 1s not permitted The full impact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations 1s currently being assessed by the Pariners, none of these pronouncements are
expected o result in any matenal adjustments to the financial statements

Mandatory effective

date for

Pronouncement Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to |AS This amendment provides a practical approach for 1 January 2012
12 — Deferred tax measunng deferred tax assets when it would be

Recovery of difficult and subjectve to determine the expected

underlying assets"? manner of recovery

Amendment to IFRS 7 — Reguires additional disclosures when an asset s 1 January 2012
Finanacial instruments transferred but 15 not derecognised It also requires

disclosure’ disclosures of assets that are derecogrised but where

the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to
the asset after the sale

IFRS 9 — Financial IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of IAS 39 i1 respect 1 January 2015

Instruments' 2 of the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial habihittes The standard requires
all financial assets te be classified as far value or
amortised cost Amoertised cost classification 1s only
permitted where the asset 1s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets In order to
collect contractual cash flows and where these
contractual cash flows are solely payment of prnincipal
and interest, Gains or losses on assets measured at
fair value are recognised in the income statement
unless the asset 1s an equity iInvestment and the Group
has elected toc present such gains or losses 1n other
comprehensive iIncome
Financial habiibes are required to be measured at far
value or amortised cost similar to 1AS 39 requirements
except that the change In far value relating to own
credit 15 reported within other comprehensive iIncome
and not the iIncome statement

The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 1
General Partner's Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements {confinued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the European Union the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will apply in the
2012 financial statements those pronouncements marked in the table above

Functional Currency

The financtal statements are presented in United States Dollars (“$”), which 1s the Partnership’s functional and
presentation currency Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional cumrency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gams and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translaton at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
habiities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised In the iIncome statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financial information presented n
US Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments is
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable
Is recognised as unearned finance income Lease Income (s then recognised over the term of the lease using the
net iInvestment method (before tax), which reflects a constant penodic rate of return ignonng tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse balances with less than three
months matunty from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances at central banks (unless restricted),
treasury hills and other eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, short-term government securiies and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inmally at fair value, being their issue proceeds (farr value of consideration received)
net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value s recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Interest income and expense

Interest iIncome and expense are recognised i the iIncome statement using the effective interest method The
effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hability
and of allocating the interest income or Interest expense over the relévant penod The effective interest rate 1s
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected hfe of the financiat
instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
habiity When calculating the effective interest rate, the Partnership estmates cash flows considenng all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses The calculation includes all fees and pomnts paid or received hetween partes to the contract that
are an ntegral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts
distributions are recognised when unconditionally receivable from the underlying partnerships

The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 1
General Partner's Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Auditor's remuneration

The audttor's remuneration of $6,000 (2010 $6,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011 was borne by
Standard Chartered Bank

3 Financial income and expense
2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Operating lease income - 615
Financial income - 615
Indempnity fee amortisation - (20,104)
QOperating lease expense - (580)
Financial expenses - (20,684)
4 Indemnity fees
2611 2010
$'000 $°000
Capitalised indemnity fees opening wntten-down value - 20,176
Less current year amortisation - (20,104)
Less discount on settlement of accrued fees payable - (72}
Capitalised indemnity fees at year end - -
Accrued fees payable opening balance - (4,927)
Add fees settied in current year - 4,927

Accrued fees payable at year end - -

5 Related party transactons

None of the directors or officers of the Partners received any fees or emoluments for services as directors or
officers of the Partner dunng the year (2010 nil)

The partnership did not receive any capital contnbutions from the partners dunng the year (2010 $4,854,636)

The partnership had amounts due from SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd of $52,000 (2010 $52,000) These are non-
interest bearing current accounts repayable on demand

The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 1
General Partner’s Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6

Risk management

a) Credit nsk

Credit risk 1s the nisk that counterparty to a financial instrument wili cause a financial loss for the Parinership by
failing to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year comprised inter group balances The Standard
Chartered Group has policies and procedures In place to manage rnsk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by
group undertakings I1s not signficant Credit nsk is further miigated by an indemnification guarantee against
certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences associated with the Partnership’s activities

b} Liquidity nsk
Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligatons as they fall due
Liquidity nisk 1s mitigated as funding decisions are within the control of the Partners

¢) Foreign currency nsk
Foreign currency nsk 1s the nisk of a loss from assets or habilittes denoted in a foreign currency Al of the net
assets of the Partnerstup are denominated in United States dollars ("USD")

d) Market nsk

Market nsk I1s the exposure created by potential changes in market pnces and rates The Partnership 1s not
exposed to any significant market nsk The Partnership has no significant exposures as its transactions and
balances are confined within the group

Ultimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership 1s a member

The Partnership was formed in the UK under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907 on 25 March 2009 The largest group
in which the results of the Partnership are consolidated I1s that headed by Standard Chartered PLC, and the smailest
group 1s that headed by Standard Chartered Bank The consolidated financial statements of these companies are
avallable to the public and may be obtained from the Company Secretary at 1 Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V
5DD

The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 1
General Partner's Report and Financial Statements
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General Partner’s Report

The General Partner, SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, of The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 2 (the “Partnership”) submits
the following report, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner’'s responsibilities

The Limited Partnership Agreement of 25 March 2009 requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for
each financial penod 1n accordance with the accounting policies set out in the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these financial statements, the Generat Partner 1s required to

« select sutable accounting policies and then apply thern consistently,
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

o state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explamned n the financial statements, and

= prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continue 1n business (As explaned in note 1 of the financial statements, the directors do not believe that it 1s
appropnate to prepare these financial statements on a going concem basis)

The General Partner 1s responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Partnership and to enable it to ensure the financial statements comply with the Limited
Partnership Agreement The General Partner 1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

Principal activites
Commentary on the business of the Partnership dunng the year 1s contained in the Business review The results for the
year are set out in the Income Statement on page 6

Business review
Dunng the previous year, the directors took the decision to cease tradng As the directors do not intend to acquie a
replacement trade, they have not prepared the financial statements on a gomng concemn basis The effect of this s
explained in note 1

Going concemn
Having made appropriate enquines, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore no longer
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this General Partner's Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken
all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit nformation and to
establish that the Partnership’s auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The General Partner has appointed KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the partnership KPMG Audit Pic have indicated therr
willingness to continue in office

J A 5 S

Averina Snow 1 Basinghall Avenue
Drrector London
SC Transport Leasing 1 Lid EC2V 5DD
LP013440

Date 27 September 2012
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the General
Partner’'s Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the General Partner's Report and the finanaial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair view of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod In prepanng
these financial statements, the directors are required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
= make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
« state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

- prepare the finanaial statements an the going concern basis unless it 1s nappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue 1n business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficent to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibthity
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect
fraud and other imegulanties

The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 2
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Independent auditor's report to the members of SC Transport Leasing
Partnership 2

We have audited the financial statements of SC Transport Leasing Partnership 2 (the “Partnership”) for the year ended 31
December 2011set out on pages 6 to 13 The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and Internatonal Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs" as endorsed by the European Union (“EU")
These financial statements have not been prepared on a going concem basis for the reason set out in note 1

This report 1s made solely to the partners, as a body, 1n accordance with the terms of our engagement Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the partners those matters we have been engaged to state to them 1n this report
and for no ather purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the partners, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opintons we have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explamed more fully in the Statement of Directors™ Responsibilities set out on page 4, the partners are responsible for
the preparation of the accounts in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 25 March 2009 Our responsibility
15 o audit, and express an opinion on, the accounts N accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18
October 2010 and having regard to Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Irdland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Auditing Practices Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the accounts

A descnption of the scope of an audit of accounts i1s provided on the APB's webstite at

Opinion on accounts

tn our opinion

« the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the partnership’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of
its loss for the year then ended,

« the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

« have been prepared n accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 25 March 2009.

Emphasis of matter — going concern

In forming our opinion an the financial statements, which I1s not modified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made In note 1 to the finangal statements concerning the Partnership's ability to continue as a going concern
The Partnership has ceased the operations in 2010 and there were no trading activities dunng 2011 These conditions,
along with the other matters explained in note 1 to the financial statements, indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt on the Partnershup's ability to continue as a going concern The financial statements have
not been prepared on a going concern basis and instead the financiat statements have been prepared on a cash recovery
basis

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in relation to the folltowing matters where, under the temms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you if, in our opinion

« the partners' report” 1s not consistent with the accounts,

- the partnership has not kept proper accounting records,

« we have not received all the iInfformation and explanations we require for our audit, or

+ Information specified by the Partnership Agreement regarding pariners' remuneration and other transactions 1s not
disclosed

SHME- HoBE |

Samer Hijaz: (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Pic, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

27 September 2012
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Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Financial income 3 - 615
| Financial expenses 3 - (11,641)
Loss for the year - (11,026)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
|
j Loss for the year - (11,026)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (11,026)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 2 6
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$'000 $'000

Current assets
Amounts owed from group undertakings 52 52
Total assets 52 52

Equity

Partners' capital account 52 52
52 52

Total equity

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements

These finanaial statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner’s Board of Directors on 27 September

2012 and were sighed on their behalf by
David Richards
Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
LP013440
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2010 10,387 (1,956) 8,431
Loss for the year - (11,026) (11,028)
Total other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (11,026) (11,026}
Partnership capital contnbuted 2,647 - 2,647
Distnbutions of partnership capital - “ -
Total contnbutions by and distnbutions to Partners 2,647 - 2,647
Balance at 1 January 2011 13,034 {12,982) 52
Loss for the year - - -
Total other comprehensive Income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - -
Partnership capital contnbuted - - -
Distnbutions of partnership capital - - -
Total contributions by and distnbutions to Partners - - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 13,034 (12,982) 52
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Cash Flow Statement

2011 2010
for the year ended 31 December 2011 $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax - (11,026)
Change 1n dettors/ creditors - 8,414
Deferred iIncome - (615)
Prepaid expenses - 580
Net cash used in operating activities - (2,647)
Cash flows from financing activities
Capital contributions from partners 3 2,647

- 2,647

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net increase In cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

Principal accounting policies
The Partnership’s financial statements have been prepared and approved by the General Partner In accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (*adopted IFRSs”)

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis, The accounting policies set out below
have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years presented in the financial statements

Foliowing cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnership 1s not likely to enter into any
further trade in the future The Partnership will therefore no longer adopt the going concern basis of accounting
and instead the financial statements have been prepared cn a cash recovery basis In the current year, n
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards {'IFRSs’}) as endorsed by the European Union
(‘EV) .

At 31 December 2011, the Partnership had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been 1ssued by the
IASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all years presented in these finanaial statements

IFRSs compnse accounting standards issued by the 1ASB and its predecesser body as well as interpretations
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ('IFRIC’) and its predecessor body

Reporting entity
SC Transport Leasing Partnership 2 1s a Partnership established in the United Kingdom The address of the
Partnership’s pnncipal place of business is 1 Basinghall Avenue, London EC2V 5DD

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

The following pronouncements relevant and applicable to the Partnership were 1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods beginning after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and certain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Union i1s not permitted The full impact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations 1s currently being assessed by the Partners, none of these pronouncements are
expected to result in any material adjustments to the financial statements

Mandatory effective
g date for

Pronouncement Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to IAS This amendment provides a practical approach for 1 January 2012

12 — Deferred tax measunng deferred tax assets when it would be

Recovery of difficult and subjective to determmine the expected

underlying assets™? manner of recovery

Amendment to IFRS 7 — Requires addiional disclosures when an asset 1s 1 January 2012
Financial instruments transferred but 1s not derecognised it also reguires

disctosure’ 2 disclosures of assets that are derecognised but where

the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to
the asset after the sale

IFRS 9 - Financial IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of IAS 39 In respect 1 January 2015

Instruments' of the classificaton and measurement of financial
assets and financial habihties The standard requires
all financial assets to be classified as far value or
amortised cost Amortised cost classificatton 1s only
permitted where the asset 1s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and where these
contractual cash flows are solely payment of pnncipal
and tnterest, Gains or losses on assets measured at
farr value are recognised In the Income statement
unless the asset 1s an equity iInvestment and the Group
has elected to present such gains or losses in other
comprehensive income
Financial abilities are required to he measured at far
value or amortised cost simiar to IAS 32 requirements
except that the change n fair value relating to own
credit 1s reported within other comprehensive income
and not the Income statement
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1.

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements (continued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the European Union the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will apply in the
2012 finaneial statements those pronouncements marked 1n the table above

Functional Currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollars (“$"), which 1s the Partnership’s functional and
presentation currency Foreign currency transachons are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabihties denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at hustoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financial information presented in
US Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments 1s
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the recetvable
1s recognised as unearned finance income Lease income 1s then recognised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant penodic rate of return ignonng tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalenis compnse balances with less than three
manths matunty from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances at central banks (unless restricted),
treasury bilis and other eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, short-term government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised iniiially at fair value, being their 1ssue proceeds (far value of consideration received)
net of transaction costs Incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value I1s recognised n the income statement over the
pernod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method The
effective Interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability
and of allocating the nterest income or interest expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate 15
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
labiity When calculating the effective interest rate, the Partnership estmates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts
distributions are recognised when unconditionally receivable from the underlying partnerships
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor's remuneration of $6,000 { 2010 $6,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011 was bome by

Standard Chartered Bank

3 Financial income and expense
2011 2010
$'000 $'c00
Operating lease iIncome - 615
Financial income - 615
Indemmity fee amortisation - (11,081)
Qperating lease expense - (580)
Financial expenses - {11,641}
4 Indemnity fees
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Capitalised indemnity fees opening wntten-down value - 11,134
Less current year amortisation - {11,061)
Less discount on settlement of accrued fees payable - (72)
Capitalised indemnity fees at year end - -
Accrued fees payable opening balance - (2,719)
Add fees settled in current year - 2,719

Accrued fees payable at year end

5 Related party transactions

None of the directors or officers of the Partners received any fees or emoluments for services as directors or

officers of the Partner dunng the year (2010 nul}

The partnership did not receive any capital contnbutions from the partners dunng the year (2010 $2,646,394)

The partnership had amounts due from SC Transpart Leasing 1 Ltd of $52,000 (2010 $52,000) These are non-

interest beanng current accounts repayable on demand
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6

7

Risk management

a) Credit risk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Partnership by
failing to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year compnsed inter group balances The Standard
Chartered Group has policies and procedures in place to manage nsk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by
group undertakings 1s not significant Credit nsk is further mitigated by an indemnification guarantee against
certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences associated with the Partnership’s activities

b) Liquidity risk
Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
Liqudity nisk is mitigated as funding decisions are within the control of the Partners

c) Foreign currency nsk
Foreign currency nsk is the risk of a loss from assets or habitties dencted in a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Partnership are denominated in United States dollars ("USD")

d) Market nsk

Market nsk 1s the exposure created by potential changes in market pnces and rates The Partnership 1s not
exposed to any significant market nsk The Partnership has no significant exposures as its transactions and
balances are confined within the group

Ultimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership 1s a member

The Partnership was formed in the UK under the Limited Partnershups Act 1807 on 25 March 2009 The largest group
n which the results of the Partnership are consolidated 1s that headed by Standard Chartered PLC, and the smallest
group is that headed by Standard Chartered Bank The consolidated financal statements of these companies are
available to the public and may be obtaned from the Company Secretary at 1, Basinghall Avenue London EC2V
5DD,
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General Partner’s Report

The General Partner, SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, of The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 4 (the “Partnership”) submits
the following report, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner’'s responsibiltties

The Limited Partnershup Agreement of 25 March 2009 requires the General Partner to prepare financial statements for
each financial penod 1n accordance with the accounting policies set out In the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these financial statements, the General Partner 1s required to

= select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
o make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained In the financial statements, and

« prepare the financial statements on the going cancern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continue In business (As explained in note 1 of the financial statements, the directors do not believe that it 1s
appropnate to prepare these financial statements on a going concem basis)

The General Pariner ts responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Partnership and to enable it to ensure the financial statements comply with the Limited
Partnership Agreement The General Partner 1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

Principal activities
Commentary on the business of the Partnership dunng the year 1s contained in the Business review The results for the
year are set out In the Income Statement on page 6

Business review
Dunng the previous year, the directors took the decision to cease trading As the directors do not intend to acquire a
replacement trade, they have not prepared the financial statements on a going concem basts The effect of this I1s
explained in note 1

Golng concern
Hawing made appropnate enquines, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore no longer
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the financial statements

Disclosure of information to auditors

The directors who held office at the date of approval of this General Partner’s Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken
all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Partnership’s auditors are aware of that infformation

Auditors
The General Partner has appointed KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the partnership KPMG Audit Plc have indicated therr
willingness to continue In office

Terry Skippen Basinghall Avenue
Director . London
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd EC2V 5DD
LP013443

Date 27 September 2012
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities in respect of the General
Partner’s Report and the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for prepanng the General Partner's Report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law they have
elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU and applicable law

Under company law the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true
and fair iew of the state of affars of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that penod In prepanng
these financial statements, the directors are required to

= select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,
- state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and

» prepare the financal statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Company will
continue sn business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
Company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006 They have general responsibility
for taking such steps as are reasonably open to them to safeguard the assets of the Company and to prevent and detect
fraud and other irregulanties
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Independent auditor's report to the members of SC Transport Leasing
Partnership 4

We have audited the financial statements of SC Transport Leasing Partnership 4 (the “Partnership”) for the year ended 31
December 2011set out on pages 6 to 13 The financial reporting fremework that has been applied in ther preparation s
applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs’) as endorsed by the European Umon (“EU")
These financial statements have not been prepared on a going concem basis for the reason set out in note 1

This report 1s made solely to the partners, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the partners those matters we have been engaged to state to them in this report
and far no cother purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibiity to anyone other
than the partners, as a body, for our audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explamed more fully in the Statement of Directors” Responsibilities set out on page 4, the partners are responsible for
the preparation of the accounts In accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 26 March 2009 Our responsibility
Is to audit, and express an opinion on, the accounts In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 18
October 2010 and having regard to International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to
comply with the Audiing Practices Board's {(APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the accounts

A description of the scope of an audit of accounts 1s provided on the APB's website at

Opinion on accounts

In our epinion

- the financial statements give a true and farr view of the state of the partnership’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of
its loss for the year then ended,

- the financia!l statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

» have been prepared in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 25 March 2009.

Emphasis of matter — going concern

in forming our opinion on the financial statements, which 1s not modified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made in note 1 to the financial statements concerning the Partnership’s ability to continue as a gaing concern
The Partnership has ceased the operations in 2010 and there were no trading activites dunng 2011 These conditions,
along with the other matters explained in note 1 to the financial statements, Indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty
which may cast signsficant doubt on the Parinership’s ability fo continue as a going concern The financial statements have
not been prepared on a going concem basis and instead the financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery
basis

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In relation to the following matters where, under the terms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you if, in our opimon

« the partners’ report* 1s not consistent with the accounts,

« the partnership has not kept proper accounting records,

+ we have not received all the infformation and explanatians we require for our audit, or

« information specified by the Partnership Agreement regarding partners’ remuneration and other transactions Is not
disclosed

SaMmen. N2

Samer Hijaz! (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Pl¢, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

Date 27 September 2012
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iIncome Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Financial income 3 - 616
Financial expenses 3 - (32,817)
Loss for the year - (32,001)
The notes on pages 10 to 13 form part of the Financial Statements
Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011
2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Loss for the year - (32,001)
Other comprehensive iIncome - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (32,001)
The notes on pages 10 to 13 form part of the Financial Statements
The SC Transport Leasing Partnership 4 6
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Current assets
Amounts owed from group undertakings 52 52
Total assets 52 52
Equity
Partners’ capital account 52 52
Total equity 52 52

The notes on pages 10 to 13 form part of the Financial Statements

These financial statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner's Board of Directors on 27 September
2012 and were signed on therr behaif by

0D o MM

David Richards

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
LP013443 .
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
$'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 1 January 2010 29,998 (5,681) 24,317
Loss for the year - {32,001) (32,001)
Total other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - (32,001} (32,001)
Parinership capital contributed 7,736 - 7,736
Distribubions of partnership capital - - -
Total contnbutions by and distnbutions to Partners 7,736 - 7,736
Batance at 1 January 2011 37,734 {37,682) 52
Loss for the year - - -
Total other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - -
Partnership capital contnbuted - - -
Distnbutions of partnership capital - - -
Total contnbutions by and distnbutions to Pariners - - -
Balance at 31 December 2011 37,734 {37,682) 52
The notes on pages 10 to 13 form part of the Financial Statements
8
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Cash Flow Statement 2011 2010
for the year ended 31 December 2011 $'000 $'000
Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before tax - (32,001)
Change n debtors/ creditors - 24,300
Deferred ncome - {615)
Prepaid expenses - 580
Net cash used in operating activities - (7,736)
Cash flows from financing activities

Capital contnbutions from partners - 7,736
Net cash generated from financing activities - 7,736
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ) "
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January " -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -
The notes on pages 10 {o 13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1 Principal accounting policies
The Partnership’s financial statements have been prepared and approved by the General Pariner in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs”)

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis, The accounting policies set out below
have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years presented in the financial statements

Following cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnership 1s not likely to enter into any
further trade in the future The Partnership will therefore no longer adopt the going concern basts of accounting
and nstead the financial statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis in the current year, In
accordance with International Financial Reportng Standards (‘IFRSs') as endorsed by the European Union
(‘EU)

At 31 December 2011, the Partnership had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been 1ssued by the
IASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all years presented in these financial statements

IFRSs compnse accounting standards 1ssued by the IASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretabons
issued by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ('IFRIC’) and its predecessor body

Reporting entity
SC Transport Leasing Partnership 4 15 a Partnership established in the United Kingdem The address of the
Partnerstup’s pnncipal place of business 1s 1 Basinghall Avenue, London EC2V 50D

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

The following proncuncements relevant and applicable to the Partnership were i1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods beginning after 31 December 2011 The use of {FRSs and certain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Union 1s not permitted  The full impact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC interpretations 1s currently being assessed by the Partners, none of these pronouncements are
expected to result in any matenal adjustments to the financial statements

Mandatory effective
date for

Pronouncement Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to IAS This amendment provides a practical approach for 1 January 2012

12 — Deferred tax measuning deferred tax assets when 1t would be

Recovery of difficult and subjective to determmine the expected

underlying assets' 2 manner of recovery

Amendment to IFRS 7 — Reguires additional disclosures when an asset I1s 1 January 2012
Financial instruments transferred but 1s not derecognised It also requires

disclosure’? disclosures of assets that are derecognised but where

the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to
the asset after the sale

IFRS 9 — Financial IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of IAS 39 in respect 1 January 2015

Instruments’ 2 of the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial habihbies The standard requires
all financial assets to be classified as far value or
amortised cost Amortised cost dassification 1s only
permitted where the asset 1s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets In order to
collect contractual cash flows and where these
confractual cash flows are solely payment of pnncipal
and interest, Gains or losses on assets measured at
farr value are recognised in the income statement
unless the asset 1s an equity investment and the Group
has elected to present such gains or losses in other
comprehensive iIncome
Financial habilihes are required to be measured at far
value or amoritsed cost similar to IAS 39 requirements
except that the change in farr value relating to own
credit 1s reported within other comprehensive income
and not the income statement
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

1

Principal accounting policies {continued)

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements (continued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the European Union the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will 2pply in the
2012 financial statements those pronouncements marked in the table above

Functional Currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dolfars ($"), which 1s the Partnership’s functional and
presentation currency Foreign cumency transactions are translated into the functonal currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translaton at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabiities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the income statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financial information presented in
US Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments 1s
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the recewvable
I1s recognised as unearned finance ncome Lease income 1s then recognised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method {before tax), which reflects a constant pertodic rate of return ignonng tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnse balances with less than three
months matunity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances at central banks (unless restncted),
treasury bills and other eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, shori-term government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inihally at fair value, being their 1ssue proceeds (fair value of consideration received)
net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value 1s recognised In the ncome statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective nterest method

Interest income and expense

Interest Income and expense are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method The
effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability
and of allocating the interest Income or Interest expense over the relevant penod The effecive interest rate 1s
the rate that discounts estmated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
Instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
lability When calculating the effective interest rate, the Partnership estmates cash flows considering ali
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses The caleulabon includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts
distributions are recogrised when unconditionally recesvable from the underlying partnerships
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

2 Auditor's remuneration

The auditor's remuneration of $6,000 (2010 $6,000) for the year ended 31 December 2011 was borne by
Standard Chartered Bank

3 Financial income and expense
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Operating lease income - 616
Financial income - 616
Indemnity fee amortisation - (32,037)
Operating lease expense - (580)
Financial expenses - {32,617)
4 Indemnity fees
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Capitalised indemnity fees opening wntten-down value - 32,152
Less current year amartisation - (32,037)
Less discount on settlement of accrued fees payable - (115)
Capitalised indemnity fees at year end - -
Accrued fees payable opening balance - (7.851)
Add fees settled in current year - 7.851

Accrued fees payable at year end -

5 Related party transactions

None of the directors or officers of the Partners recelved any fees or emoluments for services as directors or
officers of the Partner dunng the year (2010 nil)

The partnership did not receive any capital contributions from the partners duning the year (2010 $7,736,056)

The partnership had amounts due from SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd of $52,000 (2010 $52,000) These are non-
interest bearing current accounts repayable on demand
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)

6 Risk management

a) Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Partnership by
faling to discharge an obligabon Financial instruments for the year compnsed inter group balances The Standard
Chartered Group has polices and procedures in place to manage risk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by
group undertakings 1s not significant Credit nsk is further mitigated by an indemnification guarantee against
certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences associated with the Partnership’s actwities

b} Liquidity risk
Liguidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
Liquidity nsk 1s mitigated as funding decisions are within the control of the Partners

c¢) Foreign currency rnisk
Foreign currency nisk Is the nisk of a loss from assets or liabilihes denoted In a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Partnership are denominated in United States dollars (“UUSD")

d) Market nsk

Market nsk 1s the exposure created by potential changes in market prces and rates The Partnership 1s not
exposed to any signficant market nsk The Partnership has no significant exposures as its transactions and
balances are confined within the group

7 Ultimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership is a member

The Partnership was formed i the UK under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907 on 25 March 2009 The largest group
in which the resulis of the Partnership are consolidated 1s that headed by Standard Chartered PLC, and the smallest
group 1s that headed by Standard Chartered Bank The consoldated financial statements of these companies are
avallable to the public and may be obtained from the Company Secretary at 1 Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V
5DD
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General Partner’s Report

The General Partner of The BW Leasing Partnership 1 LP (the Partnership), SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, submits the
followmang report, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner’s responsibilities

The Limited Partnership Agreement of 14 June 2010 requires the General Partner to prepare Financial Statements for
each financial penod 1n accordance with the accounting policies set out In the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these Financial Statements, the General Partner 1s required to

+ select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
+ make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

e state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements, and

* prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continue In business

The General Partner 1s responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Partnership and to enable it to ensure the Financial Statements comply wath the Limited
Partnership Agreement The General Partner 1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Pannership and for
talung reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulartes

Principal activities

Commentary on the business of the Partnership dunng the year 1s contained in the Business review The results for the
year are set out In the Income Statement on page 5

Dunng the year the Partnership’s pnincipal activity was operating a leasing trade However, on 7 December 2011, the
directors of the General Partner {the Directors) took the decision to cease trading n light of changed economic
crcumstances As the Directors do not intend to acquire a replacement trade, they have not prepared the Financial
Statements on a going concern basis The effect of this 1s explained in note 1

Business review

in June 2011 the Partnership's ship finance lease, in which it was the lessor, was terminated Outstanding lease
receivables were accelerated and the ship was disposed of at market value The Partnership received lease termination
fees, and 0 01% of the ship sale proceeds were retained after allowming for a commission payable to the sales agent

Going concern

Having made appropnate enquines, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore no tonger
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Financial Statements

Disclosure of information to auditors
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of thus General Partner's Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit Information of which the Partnership’s auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken

all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Partnership’s auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The Generat Partner has appointed KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Partnership KPMG Audit Plc have indicated their
willingness to continue In office

Heervty 13 Saee

Averina Snow

Director
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 1 Basinghall Avenue
Reg No 6787116 Lendon

EC2V 5DD
27 September 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the BW Leasing
Partnership 1 LP

We have audited the Financial Statements of BW Leasing Partnership 1 LP for the year ended 31 December 2011 which
compnse Income statement, Statement of Comprehensive iIncome, Balance sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash
flow statement and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is
applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs'} as adopted by the European Union (“EU") These
Financial Statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis far the reason set out In note 1

This report Is made solely to the partnership’s members, as a body, 1n accordance with sections 4985 and 496 of the
Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships {Accounts) Regulations 2008 Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in this
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the partnership and the partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explained more fully in the General Partner's report set out on page 3, the partnership’s members are responsible for
the preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 14 June 2010 Qur
responsibility 1s to audit, and express an opimion on, the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)} Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of Financial Statements 1s provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm
Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opinion the Financial Statements

= give a true and farr view of the state of the partnership's affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of its loss for the year then
ended,

* have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

* have been prepared 1n accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 14 June 2010

Emphasis of matter — going concern

In forming our opinion on the Financial Statements, which 1s not modified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made In note 1 to the Financial Statements concerning the partnership’s ability to continue as a going
concern The partnership incurred a net loss of $15 milllon duning the year ended 31 December 2011 and, at that date,
the partnership’s non-current abilities exceeded its total assets by $17 5 miliion These conditions, along with the other
matters explained 1n note1 to the Financial Statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the partnership's ability to continue as a going concern

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in relation to the following matters where, under the terms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you if, in our opnion

* the partners' report™ 1s not consistent with the Financial Statements,

= the partnership has not kept proper accounting records,

+ we have not received all the infformation and explanations we require for our audit, or

+ information specified by the Partnership Agreement regarding partners' remuneration and other transactions is not
disclosed

S AmMmEN. HORZ)

Samer Hijazi (Sentor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

27 September 2012
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Income Statement

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010

$’000 $°000

Financial Income ’ 3 57 36
Financial expenses 3 {15,760) {1,808)
Loss for the year/ period (15,703) {1,772)

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
$°000 $’000
Loss for the year/ peniod (15,703) (1,772)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year! period (15,703) (1,772)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Parinership 1 LP 6
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$000 $°000
Current assets
Finance lease receivable - 506
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 3,435
Amounts due from group undertakings 2 -
2 3,941
Non-current assets
Finance lease receivable - 1859
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 11,898
- 13,757
Total assets 2 17,698
Current habilities
Financial habiities 5 - 2,614
- 2,614
Non-current hiabilities
Financial liabilities 5 17,136 16,887
Interest payable 373 -
17,509 16,887
Total iabilities 17,509 19,501
Net assets (17,507} (1,803)
Equity
Partners’ capital account (17,507) (1,803)
Total equity (17,507) (1,803)

The notes on pages 10 tc13 form part of the Financial Statements

These Financial Statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner’s Board of Directors on 27 September

2012 and were signed on their behalf by

David Richards

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
Reg No 6787116
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Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
$'000 $°000 $’000
Balance at 24 June 2010 19,779 (19) 19,760
Loss for the period - (1,772) (1,772)
Total comprehensive income for the penod - (1,772} {1,772)
Distnbutions of Partnership capital (19,791) - {19,791)
Total contnbutions by and distnbutions to Partners (19,791) - (19,791)
Balance at 31 December 2010 (12) (1,791) {1,803)
Loss for the year - (15,703) (15,703)
Total comprehensive income for the year - (15,703) (15,703)
Balance at 31 December 2011 {12) (17,495) (17,507)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 1 LP 8
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010
$'000 $°000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (15,703) {1,772)
Indemnty fee amortisation 4 15,333 1,798
Accrued interest 372 -
Net cash (used in}/generated from operating activities 2 26

Cash flows from investing activities
Finance lease rentals received 2,365 265
Net cash generated from investing activities 2,365 265

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital distnbutrons to Partners (19)
Loans to Partners (2) -
Loan repayments to Partners (2,365) (272)
Net cash used In financing activities (2,367) {291)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

Principal accounting policies
The Parnership's Financial Statements have been prepared and approved by the General Partner In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU ("adopted IFRSs™)

Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis The accounting pelicies set out below
have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in the Financial Statements

Following cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnership 1s not likely to enter into any
further trade in future The Partnership will therefore no longer adopt the going concern basis of accounting and
instead the Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis 1n the current penod, in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union (‘EU’)

At 31 December 2011, the Partnership had adopted atl IFRSs and interpretations that had been 1ssued by the
IASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all penods presented In these Financial Statements

IFRSs compnse accounting standards 1ssued by the |IASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretations
1ssued by the International Finanaial Reporting Interpretations Committee {‘IFRIC’) and its predecessor body

Reporting entity
The BW Leasing Partnershup 1 LP 1s a Limited Partnership established in the United Kingdom The address of
the Partnership's pnncipal place of business 1s 1 Basinghali Avenue, London, EC2V 5DD

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements

The following pronouncements relevant and applicable to the Partnership were 1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods beginning after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and cerain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Uruon 1s not permitted The full smpact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations i1s currently being assessed by the Partners, none of these pronouncements are
expected to result in any matenal adjustments to the Financial Statements

Mandatory effective
date for
Pronouncement Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to IAS This amendment provides a practical approach for 1 January 2012
12 — Deferred tax measunng deferred tax assets when it would be
Recovery of difficult and subjective to determine the expected
underlying assets' ? manner of recovery
Amendment to IFRS 7 - Requires addiional disclosures when an asset 1s 1 January 2012
Financial instruments transferred but 1s not derecogrised it also requires
disclosure”? disclosures of assets that are derecogmsed but where
the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to
the asset after the sale
IFRS 9 — Financiat IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of 1AS 39 in respect 1 January 2015

Instruments' 2 of the classification and measurement of financal
assets and financial kabiltes The standard requires
all financial assets to be classified as far value or
amorused cost Amoriised cost classification 1s only
pemitted where the asset s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets i order to
collect contractual cash flows and where these
contractual cash flows are solely payment of pnncipal
and mterest, Gains or losses on assets measured at
farr value are recognised In the income statement
unless the asset Is an equity investment and the Group
has elected to present such gains or losses In cther
comprehensive iIncome
Financial habilittes are required to be measured at far
value or amortised cost similar to 1AS 39 requirements
except that the change in fair value relating to own
credit s reported within other comprehensive iIncome
and not the income statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements (continued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the European Union the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will apply in the
2012 Financial Statements those pronouncements marked in the table above

Functional currency

The Financial Statements are presented in United States Dollars (“$"), which i1s the Partnership’s functional and
presentatton currency Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevalling at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
habilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised In the income statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financial information presented in
US Deollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments Is
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable
1s recogrised as unearned finance iIncome Lease income 1s then recognised over the term of the lease using the
net Investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant penodic rate of return ignonng tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow statement, cash and cash equivalents compnise balances with less than three
months matunity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances at central banks (uniess restncted),
treasury bills and other ghigible bills, loans and advances to banks, short-term government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised imitially at fair value, being their 1ssue proceeds (farr value of considerahon received)
net of transachon costs iIncurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value 1s recognised 1n the iIncome statement over the
penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Interest Income and expense

Interest iIncome and expense are recognised in the iIncome statement using the effective interest method The
effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financiat hability
and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate I1s
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected Iife of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter penod to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
habiity When calculating the effective interest rate, the Partnership estmates cash flows considerning all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continved)

2 Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor's remuneration of $6,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010 $6,000) was

borne by Standard Chartered Bank

3 Financial income and expense

2011 2010

$°000 $'000
Interest income 37 36
Termination fee iIncome 20 -
Financial income 57 36
Interest expense 427 10
Indemnity fee amortisation 15,333 1,798
Financial expenses 15,760 1,808

4 indemnity fees

Following the adoption of the cash recovery basis of accounting, as outhned In note 1, the unamortised fees were
fully expensed on the basis that they were not expected to generate any recovery of cash

2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Capitahsed indemnity fees at 1 January 15,333 17,131
Less current penod amortisation (15,333) {1,798)
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,333
Of which
Wil be amortised within one year - 3,435
Will be amortised later than one year and less than five years - 11,898
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,333
5 Financial hiabilities
2011 2010
$'000 $°000
Current loan - 2,614
Non-current loan 17,136 16,887
Loan payable 17,136 19,501
6 Related party transactions
None of the directors or officers of the Partners received any fees or emoluments for services as directors or
officers of the Partnership dunng the year
The Partnership made distnbutions to the Partners of $2,000 (2010 $19,791,000)
The BW Leasing Partnership 1 LP 12
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7

Risk management
a) Credit nsk

Credit nisk 1s the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Partnership by
falng to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year compnsed finance lease receivables, which
were fully realised by year end The Standard Chartered Group has policies and procedures in place to manage
nisk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by group undertakings 1s not significant Credit nsk s further mitigated
by an indemnification guarantee against certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences
associated with the Partnership’s activities

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the risk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
Liquidity nisk 1s mitigated as funding decisions are within the cantrol of the Partners

c} Foreign currency nsk

Foreign currency nsk ts the nisk of a loss from assets or abilities denoted 1n a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Partnership are denominated in United States doltars ("USD")

d} Market nsk

Market nsk i1s the exposure created by potential changes in market prices and rates The Partnership 1s not
exposed to any significant market nsk as it has secured fixed rate finance lease rental income

Ultimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership 1s a member

The Partnership was formed in the UK under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907 on 14 June 2010 The results of the
Partnership are not consolidated into the results of any other entity for accounting purposes The Financial Statements
of the Partnership are available to the public and may be obtained from ther pnncipal place of business located at 1
Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V 5DD
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General Partner’s Report
The General Partner of The BW Leasing Partnership 2 LP (the Partnership), SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, submits the
following report, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner’s responsibihties

The Limited Partnership Agreement of 14 June 2010 requires the General Partner to prepare Financial Statements for
each financial penod in accordance with the accounting policies set out in the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these Financial Statements, the General Partner 1s required to

* select sutable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
» make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements, and

+ prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless It 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continuze In business

The General Partner 1s responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Partnership and to enable it to ensure the Financial Statements comply with the Limited
Partnership Agreement The General Partner 1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulanties

Pnncipal activities

Commentary on the business of the Partnership dunng the year 1s contained in the Business review The results for the
year are set out in the Income Statement on page 5

Dunng the year the Partnership's pnncipal activity was operating a leasing trade However, on 7 December 2011, the
directors of the General Pariner (the Directors) took the decision to cease trading in ght of changed economic
crcumstances As the Directors do not Intend to acquire a replacement trade, they have not prepared the Financial
Statements on a going concern basis The effect of this 1s explaied in note 1

Business review

In June 2011 the Partnership’s ship finance lease, In which it was the lessor, was terminated Outstanding lease
receivables were accelerated and the ship was disposed of at market value The Partnership received lease termination
fees, and 0 01% of the ship sale proceeds were retained after allowing for a commssion payable to the sales agent

Going concern

Having made appropnate enquines, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore no longer
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Finanaial Statements

Disclosure of information to auditors
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this General Partner’'s Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 15 no refevant audit information of which the Partnership’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken

all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit Information and to
establish that the Partnership’s auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The General Partner has appointed KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Partnership KPMG Audit Ple have indicated their
wilingness to continue in office

Auw‘{d )9 Snm

Averina Snow

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 1 Basinghall Avenue

Reg No 6787116 London
EC2Vv 5DD

27 September 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report to the members of the BW Leasing
Partnership 2 LP

We have audited the Finanaial Statements of BW Leasing Partnership 2 LP for the year ended 31 December 2011 which
compnse Income statement, Statement of Comprehensive income, Balance sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash
flow statement and the related notes The financial reporing framework that has been applied in their preparation 1s
applicable faw and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union (*EU”) These
Financial Statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis for the reason set out in note 1

This report 1s made solely to the partnership’'s members, as a body, in accordance with sectons 495 and 496 of the
Comparnies Act 2008, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them in this
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the partnership and the partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explained more fully in the General Partner’s report set out on page 3, the partnership’s members are responsible for
the preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 14 June 2010 Our
responsibility 1S to audit, and express an opinion on, the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
International Standards on Audiing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of Finanaal Statements 1s provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/pnvate cfm
Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opinion the Financial Statements

= give a true and fair view of the state of the partnership's affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of its loss for the year then
ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

» have been prepared in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 14 June 2010

Emphasis of matter — going concern

in forming our opinion on the Financial Statements, which 1s not modified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made 1n note 1 to the Financial Staterments concerning the partnership’s ability to continue as a going
cancern The partnership incurred a net loss of $15 million during the year ended 31 December 2011 and, at that date,
the partnership's non-current liabiliies exceeded its total assets by $17 5 million These conditions, along with the other
matters explained in note1 to the Financial Statements, indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the partnership's ability to continue as a going concern

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report In relation to the following matters where, under the terms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you If, in our opinion

= the pariners' report* 1s not consistent with the Financial Statements,

- the partnership has not kept proper accounting records,

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit, or

+ information spectfied by the Partnership Agreement regarding partners’ remuneration and cther transactions is not
disclosed

SAameEr. HiIGet)

Samer Hijazi (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

27 September 2012
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Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010
$000 $'000
Financial ncome 3 57 36
Financial expenses 3 (15,761) (1,808)
Loss for the year! penod (15,704) {(1,772)

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 2 LP 5

General Partner's Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011




Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010

$'000 $'000

Loss for the year/ perniod (15,704} {1,772)

Other comprehensive Income - -

Total comprehensive loss for the year/ period (15,704) (1,772)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$'000 $°000
Current assets
Finance lease recetvable - 506
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 3,435
Amounts due from group undertakings 2 -
2 3,941
Non-current assets .
Finance lease receivable - 1,859
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 11,898
- 13,757
Total assets 2 17,698
Current habilities
Financial habilites 5 - 2,614
- 2,614
Non-current habilities
Financial liabilities 5 17,136 16,887
Interest payable 373 -
17,509 16,887
Total habihities 17,509 19,501
Net assets (17,507) (1,803)
Equity
Pariners’ capital account {17,507) (1,803)
Total equity {17,507) (1,803)

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Finanaial Statements

These Financial Statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner's Board of Directors on 27 September

2012 and were signed on their behalf by

Dawvid Richards

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
Reg No 6787116
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
$°000 $'000 $°000
Balance at 24 June 2010 19,779 (19) 19,760
Loss for the penod - (1,772) (1,772}
Total comprehensive income for the penod - (1,772) (1,772)
Distnbutions of Partnership capuital (19,791} - (19,791)
Total contnbubions by and distnbutions to Partners {19,791) - (19,791)
Balance at 31 December 2010 (12) (1,791) (1,803)
Loss for the year - (15,704) (15,704)
Total other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - (15,704) (15,704)
Balance at 31 December 2011 {12) (17,495) {17,507)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements .
The BW Leasing Partnership 2 LP 8
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010
$°000 $’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (15,704) (1,772)
Indemmity fee amortisation 4 15,333 1,798
Accrued interest 373 -
Net cash generated from/ (used In) operating activities 2 26

Cash flows from investing activities
Finance lease rentals received 2,365 265
Net cash generated from investing activities 2,365 265

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital distnbutions to Partners - (19}
Loans to Partners (2) -
Loan repayments to Partners (2,365) (272)
Net cash used in financing activities {2,367) (291)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1 Principal accounting policies
The Partnership’s Financial Statements have been prepared and approved by the General Partner in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs”)
Basis of preparation
The Financtal Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis The accounting policies set out below
have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in the Financial Statements
Following cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnerstup 1s not likely to enter into any
further trade in future The Partnership will therefore no longer adopt the going concern basis of accounting and
instead the Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis in the current penod, In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union (‘EU")
At 31 December 2011, the Partinership had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been 1ssued by the
IASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been appled consistently
to all penods presented in these Financral Statements
IFRSs compnse accounting standards i1ssued by the IASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretations
issued by the International Financiat Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) and its predecessor body
Reporting entity
The BW Leasing Partnership 2 LP 1s a Limited Partnership estabhshed in the United Kingdom The address of
the Partnership's pnnaipal place of business 1s 1 Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V 5DD
Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements
The following prenouncements relevant and applicable to the Partnership were 1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods beginning after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and certain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Union i1s not permitted The full impact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations is currently being assessed by the Partners, none of these pronouncements are
expected to result in any matenal adjustments to the Financial Statements
Mandatory effective
date for

Pronouncement Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to IAS This amendment provides a practcal approach for 1 January 2012
12 - Deferred tax measunng deferred tax assets when it would be
Recovery of difficuit and subjective to determine the expected
underlying assets' 2 manner of recovery
Amendment to IFRS 7 — Requires addiional disclosures when an asset 1s 1 January 2012
Financial instruments transferred but 1s not derecogrised It also requires
disclosure’ 2 disclosures of assets that are derecognised but where

the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to

the asset after the sale
IFRS ¢ - Financial IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of IAS 39 in respect 1 January 2015
Instruments of the classification and measurement of financial

assets and financial habilives The standard requires

all financial assets to be classfied as farx value or

amortised cost Amortised cost classification is only

permitted where the asset is held wathin a business

model whose objective s to hold assets in order to

collect contractual cash fiows and where these

contractual cash flows are sclely payment of pnncipal

and interest, Gains or losses on assets measured at

farr value are recognised in the income statement

unless the asset 1s an equity investment and the Group

has elected to present such gams or losses in other

comprehensive iIncome

Financial habihttes are required to be measured at far

value or amortised cost similar to 1AS 39 requirements

except that the change in far value relating to own

credit 1s reported within other comprehensive income

and not the iIncome statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Recently i1ssued accounting pronouncements (continued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the European Union the Group has not yet made a final deciston as to whether it will apply in the
2012 Financial Statements those pronouncements marked in the table above

Functional currency

The Financial Statements are presented in United States Dollars (*$”), which 1s the Partnership’s functional and
presentation currency Foreign currency transactons are translated into the funchonal currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabiiies denominated In forexgn currencies are recognised in the iIncome statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financial information presented in
US Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments 1s
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable
15 recognised as unearned finance income Lease income 1s then recognised over the term of the lease using the
net iInvestment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of return ignonng tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow statement, cash and cash eguivalents comprise balances with less than three
months maturity from the date of acquisition, Including cash and balances at central banks {unless restricted),
treasury bills and other eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, short-term government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised intially at fair value, being therr 1ssue proceeds (far value of consideration received)
net of transachon costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transacton costs and the redemption value 15 recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Interest income and expense

Interest iIncome and expense are recognised in the income statement using the effective interest method The
effective interest method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hability
and of allocating the interest iIncome or interest expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate 1s
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter penod to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
labiity When calcutating the effective imterest rate, the Partnership estimates cash flows considenng all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit fosses The calculation includes all fees and points pard or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and alt other premiums or discounts
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 Auditor’s remuneration
The auditor's remuneration of $6,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010 $6,000) was
borne by Standard Chartered Bank
3 Financial income and expense
2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Interest iIncome 37 36
Termination fee iIncome 20 -
Financial income 57 36
Interest expense 428 10
Indemnity fee amortisation 15,333 1,798
Financial expenses 15,761 1,808
4 Indemnity fees
Following the adophion of the cash recovery basis of accounting, as outiined in note 1, the unamortised fees were
fully expensed on the basis that they were not expected to generate any recovery of cash
2011 2010
$°000 $’000
Capitalised indemnity fees at 4 January 15,333 17,131
Less current pencd amorhsation (15,333) (1,798)
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,333
Of which
Will be amortised within one year - 3,435
Will be amortised later than one year and less than five years - 11,898
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,333
5 Financial habilities
2011 2010
$’000 $'000
Current loan - 2614
Non-current loan 17,136 16,887
Loan payable 17,136 19,501
6 Related party transactions
None of the directors or officers of the Partners received any fees or emolumenits for services as directors or
officers of the Partnership dunng the year
The Partnership made distributtons to the Partners of $2,000 (2010 $19,791,000)
The BW Leasing Partnership 2 LP 12
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7

Risk management
a) Credit nsk

Credit nsk 15 the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Parinership by
faling to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year comprised finance lease receivables, which
were fully realised by year end The Standard Chartered Group has policies and procedures In place to manage
nsk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by group undertakings 1s not significant Credit nsk 1s further mitigated
by an indemnification guarantee against certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences
associated with the Partnership’s activities

b) Liquidity nsk

Liguidity nsk 1s the risk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
Liquidity nsk 1s mitigated as funding decisions are within the control of the Partners

c) Foreign currency nisk

Foreign currency nsk is the nsk of a loss from assets or habilities denoted 1n a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Partnership are denominated in United States dollars ("USD")

d) Market nsk

Market nsk 1s the exposure created by potental changes in market pnces and rates The Parinership 1s not
exposed to any significant market risk as it has secured fixed rate finance lease rental income

Ultimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership 1s a member

The Partnerstup was formed in the UK under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907 on 14 June 2010 The resuits of the
Partnership are not consolidated into the results of any other entity for accounting purposes The Financial Statements
of the Partnership are avallable to the public and may be obtained from their pnncipal place of business located at 1
Basinghall Avenue, Londen, EC2V 5DD
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General Partner’s Report

The General Partner of The BW Leasing Parinership 3 LP (the Partnership), SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, submits the
following report, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner’s responsibilities

The Limited Partnership Agreement of 14 June 2010 requires the General Partner to prepare Financial Statements for
each financial penod in accordance with the accounting policies set out in the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these Financial Statements, the General Partner i1s required to

« select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make Judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements, and

« prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it 1S inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continue in business

The General Partner is responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Partnershup and to enable it to ensure the Financial Statements comply with the Limited
Partnership Agreement The General Partner i1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and for
taking reasonable steps for the preventton and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

Pnncipal activities

Commentary on the business of the Partnership dunng the year is contained in the Business review The resuits for the
year are set out In the Income Statement on page 5

Dunng the year the Partnership’s pnncipal activity was operating a leasing trade However, on 7 December 2011, the
directors of the General Partner (the Directors) tock the decision to cease trading in light of changed economic
crcumstances As the Directors do not intend to acquire a replacement ftrade, they have not prepared the Financial
Statements on a gaing concern basis The effect of this 1s explained in note 1

Business review

In June 2011 the Partnership’s ship finance lease, in which it was the lessor, was terminated Outstanding lease
receivables were accelerated and the ship was disposed of at market value The Partnership received lease termination
fees, and 0 01% of the ship sale proceeds were retained after alloming for a commission payable to the sales agent

Going concern

Having made appropnate enquines, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore no longer
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Financial Statements

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this General Partner's Report confirm that, sc far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Partinership’s auditors are unaware, and each director has taken
all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit infformation and to
establish that the Partrership’s auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The Generai Partner has appointed KPMG Audit Plc as auditors of the Partnership KPMG Audit Plc have ndicated therr
willingness to conttnue in office

Aoervta # Snes

Averina Snow

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 1 Basinghall Avenue

Reg No 6787116 London
EC2v 50D

27 September 2012
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Independent Auditor’'s Report to the members of the BW Leasing
Partnership 3 LP

We have audited the Financial Statements of BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP for the year ended 31 December 2011 which
comprse Income statement, Statement of Comprehensive ncome, Balance sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash
flow statement and the related notes The financial reporting framework that has been applied n their preparation Is
applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (1FRSs’) as adopted by the European Union (“EU") These
Financral Statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis for the reason set out in nate 1

This report 1s made solely to the partnership’s members, as a body, In accordance with sections 495 and 496 of the
Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 Cur audit work has
been underiaken so that we rmght state to the parinership's members those matters we are required to state to them in this
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the partnership and the partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opintons we: have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explained more fully in the General Partner's report set cut on page 3, the partnership’s members are responsible for
the preparation of the Financial Statements 1n accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 14 June 2010 Our
responsibiity (s to audit, and express an opinion on, the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB'’s) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of Financial Statements i1s provided on the APB’s website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/pnvate cfm
Opinion on Financial Statements

In cur apinion the Financial Statements

» give a true and fair view of the state of the partnership's affars as at 31 December 2011 and of its loss for the year then
ended,

» have been properly prepared in accordance with iFRSs as adopted by the EU,

» have been prepared 1n accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 14 June 2010

Emphasis of matter — going concern

In forming our opinion on the Financial Statements, which 1s not modified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made in note 1 to the Finanaial Statements concerming the partnership’s ability to continue as a going
concern The partnership incurred a net loss of $15 million during the year ended 31 December 2011 and, at that date,
the partnership's non-current liabiliies exceeded its total assets by $17 5 millon These conditions, aleng with the other
matters explained in note1 to the Financial Statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the partnership's ability to continue as a going concern

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in relation to the following matters where, under the terms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you If, in our opinion

« the partners’ report* 1s not consistent with the Financial Statements,

« the partnership has not kept proper accounting records

= we have not received all the infformation and explanations we require for our audit, or

- infformation specified by the Partnership Agreement regarding partners' remuneration and other transactions is not
disclosed

SaMmern. HGNRTD

Samer Hijazi {(Serior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

27 September 2012
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Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010

$°000 $°000

Financial Income 3 57 36
Financial expenses 3 (15,791} (1,811)
Loss for the year/ penod (15,734) {1,775)

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP 5
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

General Partner’'s Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Loss for the year/ period (15,734) (1,775)
Other comprehensive iIncome - -
" Total comprehensive loss for the year/ period (15,734) (1,775)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP 6




Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$°'000 $’000
Current assets
Finance lease recevable - 507
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 3,442
Amounts due from group undertakings 2 -
2 3,949
Non-current assets
Finance lease receivable - 1,862
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 11,920
- 13,782
Total assets 2 17,731
Current habihties
Financial llabilities 5 - 2,619
- 2,619
Non-current habilities
Financial habilities 5 17,168 16,919
Interest payable 375 -
17,543 16,919
Total labilities 17,543 19,538
Net assets (17,541) (1,807)
Equity
Partners’ capital account {17,541) (1,807)
Total equity {(17,541) (1,807)

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements

These Financial Statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner's Board of Directors on 27 September

2012 and were signed on their behalf by

D g AN

David Richards

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Lid
Reg No 6787116
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
5000 $°000 $’000
Balance at 24 June 2010 19,816 (19) 19,797
Loss for the penod - (1,775) (1,775)
Total comprehensive income for the peniod - (1,775) (1,775)
Distnbutions of Partnership capital {19,829) - (19,829)
Total contnbutions by and distnbutions to Partners (19,829) - (19,829)
Balance at 31 December 2010 (12} {1,795) {1,807}
Loss for the year - (15,734) (15,734)
Total other comprehensive iIncome - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - (15,734} (15,734)
Balance at 31 December 2011 {(12) (17,529) {17,541)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP 8
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010
$°000 $'000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax (15,734) (1,775)
Indemnity fee amortisation 4 15,362 1,801
Accrued interest 375 -
Net cash generated {used in)/ from operating activities 3 26

Cash flows from investing activities
Finance lease rentals received 2,370 265
Net cash generated from investing activities 2,370 265

Cash flows from financing activitres
Capital distnbutions to Partners - (19)
Loans to Partners {2) -
Loan repayments to Partners (2,371) (272)
Net cash used n financing activities (2,373) {291)
Net increase In cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -

The notes on pages 10 to13 form pait of the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

Principal accounting policies
The Partnership’'s Financial Statements have been prepared and approved by the General Partner in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs")

Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis The accounting policies set out below
have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in the Finanoal Statements

Following cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnership 1s not likely to enter into any
further trade in future The Partnership will therefore no longer adopt the going concern basis of accounting and
instead the Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis In the current penod, In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ((IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union ('EU’)

At 31 Decermber 2011, the Partnership had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been issued by the
IASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all penods presented in these Financial Statements

IFRSs compnse accounting standards 1ssued by the IASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretations
1ssued by the International Financial Reporting interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC') and its predecessor body

Reporting entity
The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP 15 a Limited Partnership established in the United Kingdom The address of
the Partnership’s pnncipal place of business 1s 1 Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V 5DD

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements

The following pronouncements relevant and applicable to the Partnership were 1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods beginning after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and certan IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Union 1s not permitted The full impact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations 1s currently being assessed by the Partners, none of these pronouncements are
expected to result in any matenal adjustments to the Financial Statements

Mandatory effective

date for

Pronocuncement Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to IAS This amendment provides a practical approach for 1 January 2012
12 — Deferred tax measunng deferred tax assets when it would be

Recovery of difficult and subjective to determine the expected

underlying assets’? manner of recovery

Amendment to IFRS 7 — Requires addiional disclosures when an asset 1s 1 January 2012
Financial instruments transferred but 1s not derecognised [t also requires

disclosure’ * disclosures of assets that are derecognised but where

the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to
the asset after the sale

IFRS 9 — quaznaal IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of IAS 39 in respect 1 January 2015

Instruments of the classficaton and measurement of financial
assets and financal habiittes The standard requires
all financial assets to be classified as far value or
amortised cost Amortised cost classification i1s only
permitted where the asset 1s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and where these
contractual cash flows are solely payment of pnnaipai
and interest, Gains or losses on assets measured at
farr value are recognised in the income statement
unless the asset 1s an equity investment and the Group
has elected to present such gains or losses 1n other
comprehensive Income
Financial habiiies are required to be measured at farr
value or amortised cost similar to |AS 39 requirements
except that the change in far value relating to own
credit 1s reported within other comprehensive iIncome
and not the income statement

The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1

Principal accounting policies (confinued)

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements (continued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the European Union the Group has not yet made a fina! decision as to whether it will apply in the
2012 Financizl Statements those pronouncements marked in the table above

Functional currency

The Financial Statements are presented in United States Dollars (“$7), which 1s the Partnership’s functional and
presentation currency Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the fransactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabiites denominated in foreign currencies are recegrused in the income statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financial information presented in
US Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments 1s
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable
1s recognised as unearned finance income Lease income Is then recognised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of returmn ignoring tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months matunty from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances at central banks {unless restncted),
treasury bills and cther eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, short-termm government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised mrtially at fair value, being their 1ssue proceeds (fair value of consideration received)
net of transaction costs incurred Boarrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value ts recognised in the income statement over the
peried of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Interest iIncome and expense

interest iIncome and expense are recognised In the income statement using the effective interest method The
effective interest method 15 a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial labiity
and of allocating the interest iIncome or interest expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate 1s
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
labiity When calculating the effective interest rate, the Partnership estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does net consider future
credit losses The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts

The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP 11
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 Auditor's remuneration

The auditor's remuneration of $6,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010 $6,000) was

borne by Standard Chartered Bank

3 Financial Income and expense

2011 2010

$°000 $’000

Interest Income 37 36
Termination fee income 20 -
Financial income 57 36
Interest expense 429 10
Indemnity fee amorhsation 15,362 1,801
Financial expenses 15,791 1,811

4 Indemnity fees

Following the adoption of the cash recovery basis of accounting, as outlined in note 1, the unamortised fees were
fully expensed on the basis that they were not expected to generate any recovery of cash

2011 2010
$°000 $°000
Capitalised indemnity fees at 1 January 15,362 17,163
Less current penod amortisation {15,362} (1,801)
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,362
Of which
Will be amortised within one year - 3,442
Will be amortised later than one year and less than five years - 11,920
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,362
5 Financial habihties
2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Current loan - 2 619
Non-current loan 17,168 16,919
Loan payable 17,168 19,538
6 Related party transactions
None of the directors or officers of the Partners recelved any fees or emoluments for services as directors or
officers of the Partnership dunng the year
The Partnership made distributions to the Partners of $2,000 (2010 $19,829,000)
The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP 12
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7

Risk management
a) Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Partnership by
failing to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year comprised finance lease receivables, which
were fully realised by year end The Standard Chartered Group has policies and procedures in place to manage
nsk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by group undertakings 1s not significant Credit nsk 1s further mitigated
by an indemnification guarantee against certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences
associated with the Partnership’s actvittes

b) Liquidity nsk

Liquidity nsk 1s the nsk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
Liqguidity nisk 1s mitigated as funding decisions are within the control of the Partners

c) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency nsk i1s the nsk of a loss from assets or habiliies denoted in a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Partnership are denominated in United States dollars {("USD")

d) Market risk

Market nsk i1s the exposure created by potental changes in market pnces and rates The Partnership s not
exposed to any significant market nsk as it has secured fixed rate finance lease rental income

Ultimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership 1s a member

The Partnership was formed in the UK under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907 on 14 June 2010 The results of the
Partnership are not consolidated into the results of any other entity for accounting purposes The Financial Statements
of the Partnership are available to the public and may be obtained from their pnncipal place of business located at 1
Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V 5DD

The BW Leasing Partnership 3 LP
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General Partner’s Report

The General Partner of The BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP (the Partnership), SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, submits the
following report, in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner's responsibilities

The umited Partnership Agreement of 14 June 2010 requires the General Partner to prepare Financial Statements for
each financial penod in accordance with the accounting policies set out In the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these Financial Statements, the General Partner i1s required to

» select suitable accounting polictes and then apply them consistently,
= make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

« state whether apphcable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements, and

= prepare the Financiat Statements on the going concern basis unless 1t 1s inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continue In business

The General Partner 1s responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Partnership and to enable it to ensure the Financial Statements comply with the Limited
Partnership Agreement The General Partner I1s also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Parinership and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

Principal activities

Commentary on the business of the Partnership dunng the year 1s contained in the Business review The results for the
year are set out In the Income Statement on page 5

During the year the Parinership’s pnncipal activity was operating a leasing trade However, on 7 December 2011, the
directors of the General Partner {the Directors) took the decsion to cease trading in hght of changed economic
crcumstances As the Directors do not intend to acquire a replacement trade, they have not prepared the Financial
Statements on a going concern basis The effect of this 1s explained in note 1

Business review

In June 2011 the Partnership's ship finance lease, n which it was the lessor, was terminated Outstanding lease
receivables were accelerated and the ship was disposed of at market value The Partnership received lease termination
fees, and 0 01% of the ship sale praceeds were retained after allowing for a commission payable to the sales agent

Going concern

Having made appropnate enquines, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore no longer
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Financial Statements

Disclosure of information to auditors
The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this General Partner's Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s auditors are unaware, and each Director has taken

all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Partnership’s auditors are aware of that information

Auditors

The General Partner has appointed KPMG Audit Plc as auditers of the Partnership KPMG Audit Plc have indicated their
willngness to continue m office

A o« A Sasv
Averina Snow
Director
SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 1 Basinghall Avenue
Reg No 6787116 London
EC2V 5DD
27 September 2012
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the BW Leasing
Partnership 4 LP

We have audited the Financial Statements of BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP for the year ended 31 December 2011 which
compnse Income statement, Statement of Comprehensive iIncome, Balance sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash
flow statement and the related notes The finanaal reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation s
applicable law and Intemational Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs') as adopted by the European Union {*EU") These
Financial Statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis for the reason set out In note 1

This report Is made solely to the partnership's members, as a body, 1n accordance with sections 495 and 496 of the
Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 OQur audit work has
been undertaken so that we might state to the partnership's members those matters we are required to state te them in this
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the partnership and the partnership’'s members, as a body, for our audit work, for thus report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explained more fully in the General Partner's report set out on page 3, the partnership’'s members are responsible for
the preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 14 June 2010 Our
responsibility 1s to audit, and express an opinion on, the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
Intermational Standards on Audiing (UK and ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's {(APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of Financial Statements 1s provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/pnvate cfm
Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opinion the Financial Statements

* give a true and fair view of the state of the partnership’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of its loss for the year then
ended,

+ have been properly prepared in accordance with [IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

» have been prepared in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 14 June 2010

Emphasis of matter — going concern

In forming our opmnion on the Financial Statements, which 1s not modified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made in note 1 to the Financial Statements concerming the partnership's ability to continue as a going
concern The partnership incurred a net loss of $15 million dunng the year ended 31 December 2011 and, at that date,
the partnership's non-current iiabilities exceeded its total assets by $17 5 milhon These conditions, along with the other
matters explained in note1 to the Financial Statements, indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the partnership's ability to continue as a going concern

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in relation to the following matters where, under the terms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you if, in our opinion

« the partners' report” 1s not consistent with the Financial Statements,

= the partnership has not kept proper accounting records,

» we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or

- iInformation specified by the Partnership Agreement regarding partners' remuneration and cther transactions 1s not
disclosed

Samere H QAT

Samer Hijazi {Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

27 September 2012
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Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010

$'000 $°000

Financial iIncome 3 57 36
Financial expenses 3 (15,821) (1,815)
Loss for the year/ penod (15,764} (1,779)

The notes an pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP 5
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
far the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Loss for the year/ period (15,764) (1,779)
Other comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year/ period {15,764) (1,779)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP 6
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Current assets
Finance lease receivable - 508
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 3,449
Amounts due from group undertakings 2 -
2 3,957
Non-current assets
Finance lease receivable - 1,866
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 11,942
- 13,808
Total assets 2 17,765
Current habilities
Financial labilities 5 - 2,624
- 2,624
Non-current habilities
Financial habilities 5 17,201 16,951
Interest payable 375 -
17,576 16,951
Total iabilities 17,576 19,575
Net assets (17,574) (1,810)
Equity
Partners’ capital account (17,574) (1,810)
Total equity (17,574) (1,810)

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements

These Financial Statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner's Board of Directors on 27 September

2012 and were signed on ther behalf by

Lo nAN

David Richards

Drrector

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
Reg No 6787116
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
$'000 $°000 $’000
Balance at 24 June 2010 19,854 (19) 19,835
Loss for the penod - (1,779) (1,779)
Total comprehensive income for the pericd - {1,779) (1,779)
Distnbutions of Partnership capital (19,866) - (19,866)
Total contnbutions by and distnbutions to Partners (19,866) - (19,866)
Balance at 31 December 2010 {12) (1,798) (1,810)
Loss for the year - (15,764) (15,764)
Total other comprehensive iIncome - - -
Total comprehensive income for the yvear - (15,764) (15,764)
Balance at 31 December 2010 (12) (17,562) {17,574)
The notes on pages 101013 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP 8
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010
$'000 $’000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax {15,764) (1,779)
Indemmnity fee amortisation 4 15,391 1,805
Accrued interest 375 -
Net cash generated (used in)f from operating activities 2 26

Cash flows from investing activities
Finance lease rentals received 2,374 266
Net cash generated from investing activities 2,374 266

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital distnbutions to Partners (19)
Loans to Partners (2) -
Loan repayments to Partners (2,374) (273}
Net cash used in financing activities {2,376) (292)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equtvalents at 1 January - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

Principal accounting policies
The Partnership’s Financial Statements have been prepared and approved by the General Partner n
accordance with Internaticnal Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs")

Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis The accounting policies set out below
have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in the Financial Statements

Following cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnership 1s not likely to enter into any
further trade 1n future The Partnership will therefore no longer adopt the going concern basis of accounting and
instead the Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis in the current period, In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards ({FRSs') as adopted by the European Union (‘EU)

At 31 December 2011, the Partnership had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been 1ssued by the
IASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all penods presented in these Financial Statements

IFRSs compnse accounting standards 1ssued by the |IASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretations
issued by the international Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (‘IFRIC’) and its predecessor body

Reporting entity
The BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP 1s a Limited Parinership established in the United Kingdom The address of
the Partnership's pnncipal place of business 1s 1 Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V 5DD

Recently issued accounting pronouncements

The following pronouncements relevant and applicable to the Partnership were 1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods beginning after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and certain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Union 1s not permitted The full impact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations 1s currently being assessed by the Partners, none of these pronouncements are
expected to result in any materal adjustments to the Financial Statements

Mandatory effective

date for

Pronouncement Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to IAS This amendment provides a practical approach for 1 January 2012
12 - Deferred tax measunng deferred tax assets when it would be
Recovery of difficuit and subjective to determine the expected
underlying assets' 2 manner of recovery
Amendment to IFRS 7 - Requires additional disclosures when an asset 1s 1 January 2012
Financial instruments transferred but 1s not derecognised It also requires
disclosure’ 2 disclosures of assets that are derecognised but where

the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to

the asset after the sale
IFRS 9 - Financial IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of IAS 39 in respect 1 January 2015

Instruments’ 2 of the classificaton and measurement of financial
assets and financial habiltes The standard requires
all financial assets to be classified as farr value or
amorhsed cost  Amortised cost classification 1s onty
permitted where the asset 1s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and where these
contractual cash flows are solely payment of pnincipal
and interest, Gains or losses on assets measured at
fair value are recognised in the income statement
unless the asset 1s an equity investment and the Group
has elected to present such gains or losses in other
comprehensive Income
Financial habiities are required to be measured at far
value or amortised cost similar to IAS 39 requirements
except that the change in far value relating to own
credit 1s reported within other comprehensive income
and nct the iIncome statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
1 Principal accounting policies {confinued)

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements {confinued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the Eurapean Union the Group has not yet made & final decision as to whether it will apply in the
2012 Financial Statements those pronouncements marked in the table above

Functional currency

The Financial Statements are presented In United States Dollars (“$”), which 1s the Partnership’s functional and
presentation currency Foreign currency transacbons are translated into the functonal currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
habilities denominated in foreigh currencies are recognised in the income statement Non-monetary transactions
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where atherwise indicated, financial information presented In
US Dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments 1s
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable
1s recognised as unearned finance Income Lease income I1s then recogrised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant penodic rate of return ignonng tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
months matunty from the date of acquisibon, including cash and balances at central banks (unless restncted),
treasury bills and other eligible bills, loans and advances to banks, short-term government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised inihally at fair value, being therr 1ssue proceeds (far value of consideration received)
net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value is recogrised in the income statement over the
penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Interest Income and expense

Interest Income and expense are recognised in the ncome statement using the effective Interest method The
effective Interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hability
and of allocating the interest income or Interest expense over the relevant penod The effective interest rate 1s
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
hability When calculating the effective interest rate, the Partnership estmates cash flows considening all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that
are an Integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor's remuneration of $6,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010 $6,000) was

borne by Standard Chartered Bank

3 Financial income and expense

2011 2010

$'000 $’000

Interest iIncome 37 36
Termination fee iIncome 20 -
Financial income 57 36
Interest expense 430 10
Indemmty fee amertisation 15,391 1,805
Financial expenses 15,821 1,815

4 Indemnity fees

Following the adoption of the cash recovery basis of accounting, as outhined in note 1, the unamortised fees were
fully expensed on the basts that they were not expected to generate any recovery of cash

2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Capitalised indemnity fees at 1 January 15,391 17,196
Less current penod amortisation {15,391) {1,805)
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,391
Of which
Will be amortised within one year - 3,449
Will be amortised later than one year and less than five years - 11,942
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,391
5 Financial liabihties
2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Current loan - 2,624
Non-current foan 17,201 16,951
Loan payable 17,201 19,575

6 Related party transactions

None of the directars or officers of the Partners received any fees or emoluments for services as directors or

officers of the Partnership dunng the year

The Partnership made distnbutions to the Partners of $2,000 (2010 $19,866,000)

The BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7 Risk management
a) Creditrisk

Credit nsk s the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Partnership by

| faling to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year comprised finance lease recevables, which
were fully realised by year end The Standard Chartered Group has policies and procedures in place to manage
nsk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by group undertakings 1s not significant Credit nsk 1s further mitigated
by an indemnification guarantee aganst certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences
associated with the Partnership's activities

b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity nsk 1s the rnisk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
Liquidity nsk 1s mitigated as funding decisions are within the contral of the Partners

¢) Foreign currency nsk

Foreign currency nsk 1s the nsk of a loss from assets or llabiities denoted in a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Partnership are denominated in United States dollars ("USD"}

d} Market nsk

Market nsk 1s the exposure created by potenbal changes in market prnces and rates The Partnership 1s not
exposed to any significant market risk as it has secured fixed rate finance lease rental income

8 Ultimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership 1s a member

The Partnership was formed in the UK under the Limited Partnerships Act 1807 on 14 June 2010 The results of the
Partnership are not consolidated into the results of any other entity for accounting purposes The Financial Statements
of the Partnership are available to the public and may be obtaned from their pnnapal place of business located at 1
Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V 5DD

The BW Leasing Partnership 4 LP 13
General Partner's Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011




THE BW LEASING PARTNERSHIP 5 LP

General Parther’'s Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011

Registered Number LP 13979




Contents

Pagel(s)
General Partner's Report 3
Independent Auditors' Report to the members of The BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP 4
Income Statement 5
Statement of Comprehensive Income 6
Balance Sheet 7
Statement of Changes in Equity 8
Cash Flow Statement 9
Notes to the Financial Statements 10-13

The BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP
General Partner's Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011




General Partner’s Report

The General Partner of The BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP (the Partnership), SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd, submits the
followang report, In respect of the year ended 31 December 2011

Statement of General Partner’s responsibilities

The Limited Partnership Agreement of 14 June 2010 requires the General Partner to prepare Financial Statements for
each financial penad in accordance with the accounting policies set out 1n the Limited Partnership Agreement In prepanng
these Financial Statements, the General Partner i1s required to

¢ select suitable accounting pclicies and then apply them consistently,
* make judgements and estmates that are reasonable and prudent,

» state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed subject to any matenal departures disclosed and
explained in the Financial Statements, and

« prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s Inappropnate to presume that the Partnership
will continue in business

The General Partner 1s responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at any
time the financial position of the Partnership and to enable 1t to ensure the Finanoial Statements comply with the Limited
Partnership Agreement The General Partner Is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Partnership and for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulantes

Principal activities

Commentary on the business of the Partnership duning the year 1s contained in the Business review The resullts for the
year are set out In the Income Statement on page 5

Dunng the year the Partnership's prncipal activity was operating a leasing trade However, on 7 December 2011, the
directors of the General Partner (the Directors) took the deaision to cease trading in hight of changed economic
crcumstances As the Directors do not intend to acquire a replacement trade, they have not prepared the Financial
Statements on a going concern basts The effect of this 1s explained in note 1

Business review

In June 2011 the Parinership’s ship finance lease, I which it was the lessor, was terminated Outstanding lease
receivables were accelerated and the ship was disposed of at market value The Parinership received lease termination
fees, and 0 01% of the ship sale proceeds were retained after allowing for a commission payable to the sales agent

Going concern

Having made appropnate enquines, we consider that the Partnership has ceased trading and should therefore ne longer
adopt the going concern basis in prepanng the Financial Statements

Disclosure of information to auditors

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this General Partner's Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Partnership’s audrtors are unaware, and each Director has taken
all the steps that ought to have been taken as a director to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
establish that the Partnership’s audtors are aware of that information

Auditors

The General Partner has appointed KPMG Audit Ple as auditors of the Partnership KPMG Audit Plc have indicated therr
willingness to continue in office

fhrcany o ) St 2D

Averina Snow

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd 1 Basinghall Avenue

Reg No 6787116 London
EC2Vv 5DD

27 September 2012
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Independent Auditor's Report to the members of the BW Leasing
Partnership 5 LP

We have audited the Financial Statements of BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP for the year ended 31 December 2011 which
compnse Income statement, Statement of Comprehensive income, Balance sheet, Statement of Changes in Equity, Cash
flow statement and the related nates The finanaial reporting framework that has been appled n ther preparation is
applicable law and Intemational Financtal Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs’) as adopted by the European Union ("EU") These
Financial Statements have not been prepared on a going concern basis for the reason set out In note 1

This report Is made solely to the partnership's members, as a body, in accordance with sections 495 and 496 of the
Companies Act 2006, as required by regulation 4 of the Partnerships (Accounts) Regulations 2008 Our audit work has
been undertaken so that we nught state to the partnership’s members those matters we are required to state to them n this
report and for no other purpose To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to
anyone other than the partnership and the partnership’s members, as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the
opinions we have formed

Respective responsibilities of partners and auditor

As explained more fully in the General Partner's report set out on page 3, the partnership's members are responsible for
the preparation of the Financial Statements in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated of 14 June 2010 Cur
responsibility i1s to audit, and express an opirion on, the Financial Statements in accordance with applicable law and
Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices
Board's (APB's) Ethical Standards for Auditors

Scope of the audit of the Financial Statements

A descnption of the scope of an audit of Financtal Statements 1s provided on the APB's website at
www frc org uk/apb/scope/private cfm
Opinion on Financial Statements

In our opinion the Financial Statements

« give a true and fair view of the state of the partnership’s affairs as at 31 December 2011 and of its loss for the year then
ended,

- have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU,

« have been prepared in accordance with the Partnership Agreement dated 14 June 2010

Emphasis of matter — going concern

In forming our opinion on the Financial Statements, which 1s not modified we have considered the adequacy of the
disclosure made 1n note 1 to the Financial Statements concerning the partnership's ability to continue as a going
concern The partnership incurred a net loss of $15 milllon during the year ended 31 December 2011 and, at that date,
the partnership's non-current habilities exceeded its total assets by $17 5 milion These conditions, along with the other
matters explained in note1 to the Financial Statements, indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty which may cast
significant doubt about the partnership’s ability to continue as a going concern

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in relation to the following matters where, under the terms of our engagement, we are required
to report to you If, In our opinion

» the partners' report* 1s not consistent with the Financial Statements,

« tha partnership has not kept proper accounting records

« we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audt, or

« nformation spectfied by the Partnership Agreement regarding partners’ remuneration and other transactions 1s not
disclosed

SAME- H1GAZ )

Samer Hijazi (Semor Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of KPMG Audit Plc, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London

27 September 2012
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Income Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010
$'000 $°000
Finangcial income 3 57 36
Financial expenses 3 (15,850) (1,818)
Loss for the year/ period (15,793) {(1,782)

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP 5
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 December 2011

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Loss for the year/ penod {15,793) (1,782)
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive loss for the year/ period (15,793) (1,782)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP 6
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Balance Sheet
as at 31 December 2011

Note 2011 2010
$°000 $’000
Current assets
Finance lease receivable - 509
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 3,455
Amounts due from group undertakings 2 -
2 3,964
Non-current assets
Finance lease receivable - 1,869
Indemnification guarantee 4 - 11,964
- 13,833
Total assets 2 17,797
Current hhabihties
Financial habilibes 5 - 2,628
- 2,628
Non-current habilities
Financial habilities 5 17,233 16,983
Interest payable 376 -
17,609 16,983
Total iabihties 17,609 19,611
Net assets {17,607) (1,814)
Equity
Partners’' capital account (17,607) {1,814)
Total equity (17,607) (1,814)

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements

These Financial Statements were approved at a meeting of the General Partner's Board of Directors on 27 September

2012 and were signed on therr behalf by

Q_a AN

David Richards

Director

SC Transport Leasing 1 Ltd
Reg No 6787116
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2011

Partnership Retained Total equity
capital earnings
$°000 $'000 $'000
Balance at 24 June 20110 19,891 {19) 19,872
Loss for the penod - (1,782) (1,782)
Total comprehensive income for the period - (1,782) (1,782)
Distnbutions of Partnership capital (19,904) - (19,904)
Total contnbubions by and distnbutions to Partners (19,904) - (19,904)
Balance at 31 December 2010 {13) (1,801) (1,814)
Loss for the year - (15,793) (15,793)
Total other comprehensive income - - -
Total comprehensive income for the year - {15,793) (15,793)
Balance at 31 December 2010 (13) {17,594) {17,607)
The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements
The BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP 8
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended 31 December 2011

Note

2011 2010
$°000 $°000

Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before tax {15,793) (1,782)
Indemnity fee amertisation 4 15,419 1,808
Accrued interest 376 -
Net cash generated (used in)/ from operating activities 2 26

Cash flows from investing activities
Finance lease rentals received 2,378 266
Net cash generated from investing activities 2,378 266

Cash flows from financing activities
Capital distributions to Partners (19)
Loans to Partners (2) -
Loan repaymenis to Partners (2,378) (273)
Net cash used In financing activities (2,380) {292)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January - -
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December - -

The notes on pages 10 to13 form part of the Financial Statements

The BW Leasing Partnership § LP 9

General Parther’'s Report and Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 December 2011




Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 December 2011

1

Principal accounting policies
The Partnership’s Financial Statements have been prepared and approved by the General Partner in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the EU (“adopted IFRSs")

Basis of preparation
The Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis The accounting policies set out below
have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all penods presented in the Financial Statements

Followming cessation of its leasing trade, management concluded that the Partnership is not likely to enter into any
further trade n future The Partnership will therefore no longer adopt the going concern basis of accounting and
instead the Financial Statements have been prepared on a cash recovery basis in the current penod, In
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (‘IFRSs') as adopted by the European Union (‘'EU’)

At 31 December 2011, the Partnership had adopted all IFRSs and interpretations that had been 1ssued by the
IASB and IFRIC, and endorsed by the EU The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently
to all penods presented in these Financial Statements

IFRSs compnse accounting standards 1ssued by the |ASB and its predecessor body as well as interpretations
1ssued by the Internationa! Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {'IFRIC’) and its predecessor body

Reporting entity
The BW Leasing Partnership 5 LP 1s a Limited Partnership established in the United Kingdom The address of
the Partnership’s pnncipal place of business 1s 1 Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V 50D

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements

The following pronouncements relevant and applicable to the Partnership were 1ssued as at 31 December 2011
but have effective dates for penods beginming after 31 December 2011 The use of IFRSs and certain IFRIC
Interpretations that have yet to be endorsed by the European Union 1s not permitted The full impact of these
IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations 1s currently being assessed by the Partners, none of these pranouncements are
expected to result In any matenal adjustments to the Financial Statements

Mandatory effective

date for

Pronouncement Description of impact the Partnership
Amendment to IAS This amendment provides a practical approach for 1 January 2012
12 — Deferred tax measuring deferred tax assets when it would be

Recovery of difficult and subjective to determine the expected

underlying assets’ * manner of recovery

Amendment to IFRS 7 — Requires additional disclosures when an asset 1s 1 January 2012
Financial instruments transferred but 1s not derecognised |t also requires

disclosure’ 2 disclosures of assets that are derecognised but where

the entity continues to have a continuing exposure to
the asset after the sale

IFRS 9 — Finanaial IFRS 9 replaces certain elements of IAS 39 in respect 1 January 2015

Instruments® 2 of the classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial habibtes The standard requires
all financial assets to be classified as farr value or
amortised cosl Amortised cost classification is only
permitted where the asset 1s held within a business
model whose objective 1s to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and where these
contractual cash flows are solely payment of pnnapal
and interest, Gains or losses on assets measured at
far value are recognised in the income statement
unless the asset 1s an equity Investment and the Group
has elected to present such gains or losses 1n other
comprehensive iIncome
Financial iabibties are required to be measured at far
value or amortised cost similar to IAS 39 requirements
except that the change in farr value relating to own
credit 1s reported within other comprehensive iIncome
and not the income statement
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

1

Principal accounting policies (continued)

Recently 1ssued accounting pronouncements (continued)

1 This IFRS or IFRIC Interpretation has not yet been endorsed by the EU
2 Subject to endorsement of the Eurapean Union the Group has not yet made a final decision as to whether it will apply in the
2012 Financial Statements those pronouncements marked in the table above

Functional currency

The Financial Statements are presented In United States Dollars (*$"), which is the Partnership’s functional and
presentation currency Foreign cumency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised In the iIncome statement Non-monetary transactons
are translated at histoncal exchange rates Except where otherwise indicated, financal information presented in
US Dolars has been rounded to the nearest thousand

Finance leases

When assets are leased to customers under finance leases, the present value of the lease payments 1s
recognised as a receivable The difference between the gross receivable and the present value of the receivable
1s recognised as unearned finance income Lease income 1s then recognised over the term of the lease using the
net investment method (before tax), which reflects a constant periodic rate of retumn ignonng tax cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the Cash Flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than three
manths maturity from the date of acquisition, including cash and balances at central banks (unless restrcted),
treasury bills and other ehgible bills, leans and advances to banks, short-term government secunties and inter
group balances

Borrowings

Borrowings are recogrnised initially at fair value, being their issue proceeds (fair value of consideration received)
net of transachion costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised cost, any difference between
proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value 1s recognised in the income statement over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Interest iIncome and expense

Interest iIncome and expense are recognised In the mcome statement using the effective interest method The
effective interest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial hability
and of allocating the interest iIncome or interest expense over the relevant perod The effective interest rate 1s
the rate that discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropnate, a shorter penod to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
habiity When calculating the effective interest rate, the Partnership estimates cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment options) but does not consider future
credit losses The calculation includes all fees and points paid or receved between parties to the contract that
are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2 Auditor’s remuneration

The auditor's remuneration of $6,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011 (31 December 2010 $6,000) was

borne by Standard Chartered Bank

3 Financial income and expense

2011 2010

$'000 $’000
Interest income 37 36
Termination fee income 20 -
Financial income 57 36
Interest expense 431 10
Indemmnity fee amortisation 15,419 1,808
Financial expenses 15,850 1,818

4  Indemnity fees

Following the adoption of the cash recovery basis of accounting, as outhined in note 1, the unamortised fees were
fully expensed on the basis that they were not expected to generate any recovery of cash

2011 2010
$'000 $'000
Capitalised indemnity fees at 1 January 15,419 17,227
Less current pencd amortisation {15,419} (1,808)
Capitalised indemmity fees at 31 December - 15,419
Of which
Will be amortised within one year - 3,455
Will be amortised later than one year and iess than five years - 11,964
Capitalised indemnity fees at 31 December - 15,419
5 Financial lhabilities
2011 2010
$°000 $'000
Current loan - 2,628
Non-current loan 17,233 16,983
Loan payable 17,233 19,611

6 Related party transactions

None of the directors or officers of the Partners received any fees or emoluments for services as directors or

officers of the Partnership dunng the year

The Partnership made distributions to the Partners of $2,000 (2010 $19,904,000)
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7

Risk management
a) Credit nsk

Credit nsk 1s the nsk that counterparty to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the Partnership by
faihing to discharge an obligation Financial instruments for the year compnsed finance lease receivables, which
were fully reahsed by year end The Standard Chartered Group has policies and procedures in place to manage
risk so the credit nsk from amounts owed by group undertakings 15 not significant Credit nsk 1s further miigated
by an indemnification guarantee against certain unintended and adverse tax or operational consequences
associated with the Partnership’s activities

b) Liquidity nsk

Ligudity rnisk 1s the nsk that the Partnership will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due
tiquidity nsk 1s mitgated as funding decisions are within the control of the Partners

c) Foreign currency nsk

Foreign currency nsk is the nsk of a loss from assets or labilities denoted in a foreign currency All of the net
assets of the Partnership are denominated in United States doltars (“USD")

d) Market nsk

Market nsk 1s the exposure created by potential changes \n market pnces and rates The Partnership 1s not
exposed to any significant market nsk as it has secured fixed rate finance lease rental income

Ulimate holding company and parent undertaking of largest group of which the Partnership 1s a member

The Partnership was formed in the UK under the Limited Partnerships Act 1907 on 14 June 2010 The results of the
Partnership are not consolidated into the results of any cther entity for accounting purposes The Financial Statements
of the Partnership are available to the public and may be obtained from therr pnncipal place of business located at 1
Basinghall Avenue, London, EC2V 5DD
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